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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 22»d Annual General Meeting of M/s SANDOR
MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED will be held on Monday the 18th Day of September,
2017 at 09.30 AM at its registered office situated at # 8-2-326/5, Road No. 3, Banjara
Hills, Hyderabad - 500034 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt the Standalone Audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2017 and the Reports of the Board of Directors
and the Auditors thereon;

2. To consider and adopt the Consolidated audited financial statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2017 and the Report of the Auditors thereon;

3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, and resolution passed by the members in the 21st Annual General
Meeting, the appointment of M /s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants,
(Registration No. 001076N/N500013) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold
the office till the conclusion of 26t Annual General Meeting be and is hereby ratified
and Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration, in addition
to reimbursement of all out of pocket expenses in connection with the audit of the
accounts of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March, 2018.

4. APPOINTMENT OF M/S K. N. MURTHY & CO. (FRN: 006823S), CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS, HYDERABAD AS THE JOINT STATUTORY AUDITOR:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and including any statutory modification thereof, M /s K. N.
Murthy & Co. (FRN: 006823S), Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad, be and is hereby
appointed as the Joint Statutory Auditors ( together with M/s. Walker Chandiok Co. &
LLP, Chartered Accountants) of the Company to hold the office from the conclusion of
this 22nd Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 27t Annual General Meeting
subject to ratification at every Annual General Meeting at a remuneration to be decided
by the board of Directors, in addition to reimbursement of all out of pocket expenses in
connection with the audit of the accounts of the Company for the financial year ending
31st March, 2018.”
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. APPROVAL FOR MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made there under (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to enter into the related party
transactions by the Company with the respective related parties for an amount not
exceeding the maximum amount specified herein below:

Sanctioned
Sl. Name of the Relationshi Nature of Amount for the
No. related entity P transaction: year
2017-18 (in Rs.)
. GROUP Rent;
M/.S Sando1j Life COMPANY WITH sale and purchase
1 Sciences Private . . 6,00,00,000/ -
Limited COMMON done in the ordinary
DIRECTOR course of business
. GROUP Rent;
9 M]?{iso S;ESS;QI;;T:II COMPANY WITH sale and purchase 3,00,00,000/-
gLimite d COMMON done in the ordinary T
DIRECTOR course of business
Sandor Dialysis nggg}(D?&l\;ED sale and purchase
3 Services Bangladesh COMMON ’ done in the ordinary 3,00,00,000/ -
Private Limited DIRECTOR course of business;
Sandor Medicaids SUB“S/%,]I?PIIARY sale and purchase
4 Bangladesh Private done in the ordinary 50,00,000/-
Limited COMMON fbusiness.
imite DIRECTOR course of business;
PROPRIETARY Rent:
Harmonica CONCERN sale and purchase 5,00,00,000/-
S Healthcare OWNED BY done in the ordina
RELATIVE OF course of busines;y
DIRECTOR ’
PROPRIETARY sale anlfienfl;rchase
6 Sandor Associates CONCERN done in thg ordinary 1,00,00,000/-
OWNED BY course of business
DIRECTOR v u
Sandor Tescon Adua SUBSSIDIARY sale and purchase
7 Drivate Limiteg WITH COMMON | done in the ordinary 1,50,00,000/ -
DIRECTOR course of business
ASSOCIATE Rent
3. Sandpr Orthopedms COMPANY WITH sale gnd purc}}ase 2,00,00,000/-
Private Limited COMMON done in the ordinary
DIRECTOR course of business
GROUP sale and purchase
V Phore Labs Private COMPANY WITH . )
R counox | done in theoxdinry | 1,000,000/
DIRECTOR u v
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is
hereby, authorized to do or cause to be done all such acts, matters, deeds and things
and to settle any queries, difficulties, doubts that may arise with regard to any
transaction with the related party and execute such agreements, documents and
writings and to make such filings, as may be necessary or desirable for the purpose of
giving effect to this resolution, in the best interest of the Company.”

For and behalf of the Board of Directors
SANDOR MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED

Sd/-
Date: 10.08.2017 RAJEEV SINDHI
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director

DIN: 00184701
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NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint proxy
to attend and vote on his / her behalf and such proxy need not be a member of the
company. The proxies, in order to be effective should be deposited at the registered
office of the company, duly completed and signed, not later than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can
act as a proxy on behalf of not more than fifty members and holding in aggregate not
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company. Members holding
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company may appoint a single
person as proxy, who shall not act as proxy for any other member. A Proxy form is
annexed to this Notice. Proxies submitted on behalf of Limited Companies, Societies,
etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution / authority, as applicable.

3. For the convenience of Members and proper conduct of the meeting, entry to the
meeting venue will be regulated by attendance slip. Members / Proxies are requested
to duly fill the attendance slips and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting to
attend the meeting.

4. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in
the order of names will be entitled to vote.

5. Corporate Shareholders intending to send their authorized representatives to attend

the meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

6. An explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is
annexed herewith.

7. Route map to the venue of the meeting is annexed herewith.

By Order of the Board
SANDOR MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED

Sd/-
RAJEEV SINDHI
Place: Hyderabad MANAGING DIRECTOR
Date: 10.08.2017 DIN: 00184701
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013:

ITEM NO. 4:

Keeping in view the growing requirement of certifications (required for RBI and other
statutory authorities) and increase in activities, it is considered worthwhile to engage
services of M/s K. N. Murthy & Co. (FRN: 006823S), Chartered Accountants,
Hyderabad as joint statutory auditor of the company. The Board of Directors are of the
opinion that this will help in easing the certifications required by statutory authorities.

M/s K. N. Murthy & Co. (FRN: 006823S), Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad, have
conveyed their consent to be appointed as the Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company
along with a confirmation that, their appointment, if made by the members, would be
within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Persons or their relatives, in any way, concerned
or interested in the said resolution.

The Board recommends that approval be accorded to appoint the Joint Statutory
Auditor as mentioned in the Item No. 4 of the notice calling this meeting by passing an
Ordinary Resolution.

ITEM NO. 5:

The Companies Act, 2013 aims to ensure transparency in the transactions and
dealings between the related parties of the Company. The provisions of Section 188(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 that govern the Related Party Transactions, requires that
for entering into any contract or arrangement as mentioned herein below with the
related party, the Company must obtain prior approval of the Board of Directors and if
the transaction is over and above the threshold limits provided under the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the approval of members by way of
Ordinary resolution would be required.:

Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind,;

Leasing of property of any kind,;

Availing or rendering of any services;

Appointment of any agent for purchases or sale of goods, materials, services or
property;

Such related party’s appointment to any office or place of profit in the company,
its subsidiary company or associate company and

7. Underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof, of the
Company.

R

o

The Board of Directors of the Company took note that the Company being in existence
for over two decades has developed praise worthy Sales, marketing and distribution
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network of medicals equipments and devices, a reliable operational control processes,
thus, may extend the required support to its associate Companies.

In the light of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of your
Company has approved the proposed transactions along with annual limit that your
Company may enter into with the related parties.

Based on the last year turnover of the company, actual quantum of related party
transactions entered into during the financial year 2016-17, the consent of
shareholders is being sought to enter into related party transactions and if necessary,
to enhance the limits for entering into transactions with related parties for the
Financial Year 2017-18.

THE PARTICULARS OF THE TRANSACTION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF
SECTION 188 AND THE COMPANIES (MEETINGS OF BOARD AND ITS POWERS) RULES,
2014 ARE AS UNDER:

Proposed
Actual for the
Sl. | Name of Name of Nature of amount year
No. | the related | Relationship related . incurred .
transaction: 2017-18
party party 2016-17
(In Rs.)
(In Rs.)
M/s Sand Rent;
/sLi?en or Group Mr. Rajeev sale and
Sindhi
1 | Sciences | 2mPeny purchase done | 514 44 910 | 6,00,00,000
Private wit common (Common in the ordinary
Limited* Director Director) course of
business
Mr. Rajeev
Sindhi
(Common Rent;
M/s Sandor Director) & sale and
Animal Group purchase done
. 3 company Mrs. : .
2 Biogenics with common Gunjan in the ordinary | 2,02,65,955 | 3,00,00,000
Lli).rlv.atg Director Sindhi <t:)ou1.*se of
imite Relative of usiness
Director is
also a
Director
* .
];Z?i?; Wholly Mr. Rajeev sale and
serv?ces owned Sindhi purchase done
3 Baneladesh subsidiary; (common in the ordinary | 3,45,52,876 | 3,00,00,000
P;girvate common Director) course of
Limited Director business;
*Sapdgr o Mr. Rajeev sale and
Medicaids Sub31d1ary Sindhi purchase .done
4 Bangladesh | with common in the ordinary 10,000 50,00,000
Private Director (Cf)mmon course of
Limited Director) business;
S | Harmonica PZ%TéZ;iry Gi\ldrij'sén Rent; 3,64,85,348 | 5,00,00,000
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Healthcare owned by Sindhi sale and /-
relative of (Relative of | purchase done
Director Director is | in the ordinary
Proprietor ) course of
business;
Rent;
Proprietary Mr. Rajeev sale and
Sindhi
6 Sandor concern : purchase done | 37 97 122 | 1,00,00,000
Associates owped by ( Proprietor | in the ordinary
Director To Entity ) course of
business
* .
Sandor Subsidiary Mr. Rajeev sale and
Tescon Sindhi purchase done
company mndhi . .
7 Aqua with common in the ordinary | 78,60,197 1,50,00,000
Private Director (Common course of
Limited Director) business
Rent
Sandor Associate Mr. Rajeev sale and
i Sindhi
g | Orthopedics |~ company purchase done | 590 16,557 | 2,00,00,000
P.rlv‘ate Wlth.common (Common | in the ordinary
Limited Director Director) course of
business
V Phore Group sale and
Labs company purchase done
9 . . - in the ordinary - 1,00,00,000
Private with common
L. . course of
Limited Director .
business

*Pursuant to the notification No G,S.R. 464(E) dated 5t June 2015 by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, states that section 188 of the companies act 2013 shall not apply to
related party mentioned under sub-clause (viii) of clause (76) of section 2.( i.e. to any
company which is- a holding, subsidiary or an associate company of such company; or
- a subsidiary of a holding company to which it is also a subsidiary); Nevertheless, the
company, as good corporate governance measure seeks to approach shareholders for
their consent.

Nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the contract or
arrangement: The details are as mentioned below:

(a) Leasing/ subleasing/ rent for office sharing of property: The Company has
entered into lease agreements with respective related parties for leasing/
subleasing/ office sharing of the property. The rent of which is fixed keeping in
view the prevailing market price at Arm’s length basis.

(b) Sale and purchase (of goods and services) in the ordinary course of business: The
Company sells certain medical equipment, devices to its group company and
provides certain support services by leveraging its existing know how and
professional expertise. The amount being charged for the said services are fixed
after considering all the relevant factors and are on arms length basis and are
carried out in ordinary course of business.
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Any other information relevant or important for the Board/Members to take a decision:

The Sale and purchase (of goods and services) in the ordinary course of business being
extended by the Company to its associate companies in relation to business
enhancement and for building up robust practices and processes are towards the
benefit of all the companies. The Board of Directors are authorized to negotiate,
finalize and execute the deeds, agreements and documents as and when they are
entered into by the company.

The Copies of the above mentioned Lease agreements are available for inspection by the
members at the Registered Office of the Company during the normal business hours
(10 am to 6 PM) on all working days (except Saturdays) up to the date of Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

Mr. Rajeev Sindhi, Managing Director ( DIN: 00184701) being common director on the
Board of related parties and being relative of related party is interested in the resolution
to that extent and to the extent of his shareholding in the Company.

Other directors and other KMP are not interested in the resolution.
The Board recommends that approval be accorded to enter into the above stated
Related Party Transactions as mentioned in the Item No. 5 of the notice calling this

meeting by passing an Ordinary Resolution.

By Order of the Board
SANDOR MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED

Sd/-
RAJEEV SINDHI
Place: Hyderabad MANAGING DIRECTOR
Date: 10.08.2017 DIN: 00184701
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BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Dear Members,

The Board of Directors of your company hereby submits the report of the business and operations of
your company (the company or SMPL) along with the audited financial statements for the financial

year ended March 31, 2017. The consolidated performance of the company and its subsidiaries has
been referred to wherever required.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performance for the year under review is given below:
(Rs. In Lacs)

] Financial Year ended Financial Year ended
Particulars
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 31.03.2017 ‘ 31.03.2016*

Standalone Consolidated
Revenue from Operations 17,504.56 15,229.13 17606.71 -
Other Income 1274.77 80.09 1260.99 -
Total Revenue 18,779.33 15,309.22 18,867.70 -
Finance Costs 736.88 639.73 777.79 -
Depreciation 149.02 185.57 273.54 -
Total Expenditure 17,214.19 14,831.03 17,896.58 -
Profit/Loss Before Tax 1565.14 478.19 971.12 -
Less: Tax Expenses 339.65 213.92 346.62 -
Net Profit /Loss After Tax 1225.48 264.28 627.49 -
Earnings per share:
Basic 75.02 22.91 37.80 -
Diluted 55.87 11.70 28.15 -

*As the company is presenting the consolidated accounts for the first time, the previous year figures are not
presented for comparison.

STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS:

Standalone:

During the financial year under review, your company has achieved total revenue of Rs. 18,779.33
Lakhs as against the previous year revenue of Rs. 15,309.22 lakhs and recorded net profit of Rs.
1,225.48 lakhs for financial year 2016-17 when compared to a net profit of Rs. 264.28 lakhs during
the previous year.

Consolidated:

The company has two foreign subsidiaries namely M/s Sandor Dialysis Services Private Limited and
M/s Sandor Medicaids (Bangladesh) Private Limited incorporated at Bangladesh. M/s Sandor
Dialysis Services Private Limited started its commercial operation from November 2016. M/s Sandor
Medicaids (Bangladesh) Private Limited is yet to begin its operation.
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In addition, the Company has an Indian Subsidiary namely M/s Sandor Tescon Aqua Private Limited.
The company acquired 51% of the paid-up capital in this company in April 2016.

During the financial year under review, your company has achieved consolidated total revenue of Rs.
18,867.70 Lakhs and recorded net profit of Rs. 627.49 lakhs for financial year 2016-17.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS:

The year under review was a mixed bag of good and bad, especially in terms of business operations
partly due to the general economic scenario and partly attributed to the slack in the performance of
flagship products of the company like I-Stat & Speciality and Pain Management. The company could
achieve a year on year growth of 6%. The segments like Point of Care Testing (POCT), Renalcare,
Pain Management and OPIOD showed a year on year growth of 3.3%, 12.3 % and 46.89%
respectively.

STRATEGY GOING FORWARD:

Introduction of New products: In order to have a diversified product portfolio, your company has
introduced new products like: DVT pumps and vascular accessories; Amnisure for PROM (
Premature Rupture of Membrane); Sanfib - Fibrin sealant for Wound closure in various surgeries;
Bupredor - Buprenorphine patches for pain management ; Ketodor - Ketoprofine patches for pain &
sports injuries and Ibuprofen Inj. for pain & fever management.

Entire sales and marketing plan to be revisited: The entire sales and marketing plan is being
devised to enhance customer focus and maximize market access.

Portfolio Market Segment
B Focus

HTK -Custodial solution

-Renatron & Renalin
Therapies identified: Critical _Abbott’s I-Stat

-Concentration onKey Accounts
care,Nephrology, Transplantation -Institutional Sales
& Cardiovascular -DJO-DVT pumps _Sub-Market

-Enables clear focus -Coagusense & Veinus -Blood Products

-significant revenue contribution -Opiod &.Pain & BIO(.)d products -Pain & Opioid
-aligning with the strategy -Qiagen- Amnisure

-Automated Dispensing system (
BD) & Simulators ( CAE)
] N

-Projects

KEY FOCUS AREAS
DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2016-17.
TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND TRANSFER OF AMOUNT TO IEPF
As the company did not declare any dividend or pay any dividend during the year, the provisions of

Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply. Further company does not have any amount
required to be transferred to Investor Education Protection Fund.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Reclassification of share capital:

Pursuant to Sections 13, 61 of the Companies Act, 2013 and following the resolution adopted by the
shareholders in the 21st Annual General Meeting of the company held on 19t September 2016, the
company reclassified its authorized share capital of the Company of Rs. 37,51,84,160/- (Rupees
Thirty Seven Crores, Fifty One Lakhs Eighty Four Thousand One Hundred and Sixty Only) consisting
of equity share capital of 2,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Crores Only)consisting of 20,00,000 equity
shares of Rupees 10 each and Preference Share capital of Rupees 35,51, 84,160/- (Rupees Thirty
Five Crores Fifty One Lakhs Eighty Four Thousand One Hundred and Sixty Only) consisting of
5,18,396 (Five Lakhs Eighteen Thousand Three Hundred and Ninety Six) 10% compulsorily
convertible preference shares of Rupees 202.50/- paisa each totaling to Rupees 10,49,75,190/-
(Rupees Ten Crores Forty Nine Lakhs Seventy Five Thousand One Hundred and Ninety only) and
5,87,345 (Five Lakhs Eighty Seven Thousand Three Hundred and Forty Five) 0.01% Compulsorily
convertible preference shares of Rupees 426/- each totaling to Rupees 25,02,08,970 (Rupees Twenty
Five Crores Two Lakhs Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Seventy only) into consisting of equity
share capital of Rupees 12,49,75,190/- consisting of 1,24,97,519 (One Crore Twenty Four Lakhs
Ninety Seven Thousand Five Hundred and Nineteen) equity shares of Rupees 10/- each and 5,87,345
( Five Lakhs Eighty Seven Thousand Three Hundred and Forty Five) 0.01% compulsorily convertible
preference shares of Rupees 426/- each totaling to Rupees 25,02,08,970 by exhausting and
reclassifying the existing unissued preference share capital of 10,49,75,190 (Rupees Ten Crores
Forty Nine Lakhs Seventy Five Thousand One Hundred and Ninety only) consisting of 5,18,396 (Five
Lakhs Eighteen Thousand Three Hundred and Ninety Six) 10% Compulsorily convertible preference
shares of Rupees 202.50/- Paisa each into Equity share capital of Rupees 10,49,75,190 consisting
1,04,97,519 equity shares of Rupees Ten Each.

Allotment of equity shares upon conversion of compulsorily convertible preference shares:

Pursuant to the resolution adopted by shareholders in the General Body Meeting held on 13t May
2016, the company decided to convert 518395 compulsorily convertible preference shares of
Rupees 202.50 each held by M/S Sandor Life Sciences Private Limited into 518395 equity shares of
Rupees 10.00 each. The CCPS were converted into 1:1 ratio (i. e. 1CCPS:1 Equity Share:
518395:518395).

Further, pursuant to the Investment Agreement dated 24t December 2015 entered into by the
company and India Life Sciences Fund, Mauritius and decision taken by the members in their
meeting held on 8t January 2016, the company converted 587344 compulsorily convertible
preference shares of Rs. 426.00 each into 521578 equity shares. The CCPS were converted into
1:0.88 ratio (1 CCPS: 0.88 Equity Shares: 587344:521578).

Rights issue of shares:

Company has not made any allotment during the year.

Buy back of securities:

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

Sweat equity:

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

Bonus Shares:

No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.

Employees Stock Option Plan:
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The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees.

Shares with differential voting rights:

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares with differential voting rights during the financial
year under review

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year under review, the company has transferred to Reserves and surplus account:

Sr No | Particulars Amount In
Rs. Crores
a. Securities Premium Reserve Account:
i) On account of conversion of 518395 CCPS of Rs. 202.50 each
into 518395 Equity shares of Rs. 10.00 each (1:1) ratio - 9.97
ii) On account of conversion of 587344 CCPs of Rs. 426.00
into 521578 Equity shares of Rs. 10.00 each (1:0.88) ratio - 24.49 34.47
b. Debenture Redemption Reserve 0.35
C. Profit transferred to Reserves and Surplus 11.90
TOTAL ADDITION MADE TO RESERVES AND SURPLUS 46.72

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, SECURITY & INVESTMENTS:

During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under
Section 185 and Section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, guarantees and security.

The company has made investment in following body corporate:

Name of the subsidiary Amount invested Percentage acquired
Sandor Medicaids (Bangladesh) Private Limited BDT 165,336 * 99.99
Sandor Dialysis Services Bangladesh Private Limited | BDT 77,113,230 * 90

Sandor Orthopedics Private Limited Rs. 60,000 1.43

Sandor Tescon Aqua Private Limited Rs. 51,000 51

*1 Bangladeshi Taka/ BDT= 0.80 INR

FIXED DEPOSITS

The company has not accepted any fixed deposits and, as such, no amount of principal or interest
was outstanding as of the Balance Sheet date.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE REPORT

During the year under review your company issued 670 (Six Hundred and Seventy Only) 16.43 %
Senior, Rated, Listed, Taxable, Transferable, Redeemable, Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures
(NCD) of face value of Rs. 100,000/- (Rupees One Lakh) each, for cash at par to the face value, on a
private placement basis aggregating to Rs. 67,000,000 (Rupees Six Crore Seventy Lakhs only) to M/s
AAV SARL Luxembourg. These NCD’s are redeemable in August 2019.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions as required under Accounting Standard - 18 are set out
in relevant notes to the financial statements forming part of this Annual Report.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in section 188(1) of the
companies Act 2013 in the prescribed Form AOC-2 pursuant to Section 134 (3) (h) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is set out as ANNEXURE 1 to
this Report.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company, along with its subsidiaries aims to provide efficient and cost effective healthcare

solutions in the form medical devices, equipments, drugs pharmaceutical products and services to
hospitals and clinics. The details of subsidiaries and Associates Company are given below:

Name of the entity Status Shareholding held by
the company
Sandor Dialysis Services Bangladesh Private Overseas Wholly
o - 99.99%
Limited owned subsidiary
Sandor Medicaids Bangladesh Private Limited Overseas Subsidiary 90%
Sandor Tescon Aqua Private Limited Indian Subsidiary 51%
. . TR o ,
Sandor Nephro Services Private Limited Indian Associate 60 /ooln.equlty Shz.ares
company (1.43% in total paid up
capital)

** The company had invested in 97350 Equity shares of Sandor Nephro services private limited. The
company divested its entire shareholding to M/s Sandor Life sciences Private Limited in August 2016.

During the year, the Board of Directors (‘the Board’) reviewed the affairs of the subsidiaries. In
accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we have prepared consolidated
financial statements of the Company, which forms part of this Annual Report. Further, a statement
containing the salient features of the financial statement of our subsidiaries in the prescribed Format
AOC-1 is appended as ANNEXURE 2 to the Board’s report. The statement also provides the details of
performance and financial positions of each of the subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
DIRECTORS

The company as on date has three Board of Directors namely:

1. Mr. Rajeev Sindhi - Managing Director
2. Mr. Viswanath Chebrol - Director
3. Mr. KV Muralidhar Reddy - Director

Inductions & Resignations

There were no inductions or resignations of any of the directors during the year.
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The provision of Section 149 pertaining to the appointment of Independent Directors does not apply
to your Company as it is a private limited company. However keeping in view the listing of
company’s debt instruments on BSE Limited, the company is supposed to constitute Audit
Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee. The company is taking all possible steps to
induct required number of Independent Directors so as to constitute these committees. The Board of
Directors in their meeting held on 29t May 2017 has also constituted a sub-committee to identify
the suitable candidates to be inducted as Independent Directors.

KEY MANAGERIAL POSITION

Mr. Ramakanta Tripathy has been appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the company w. e. f.
07t September 2016. He is a Fellow Member of ICAI and an Associate Member of ICWAIL He has
over 22 years of experience in the field of Finance and Accounts.

DETAILS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS & SUB COMMITTEE MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE
YEAR:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS:

During the year under review, 7 board meetings were held. The maximum time gap between any two
consecutive meetings was within the period prescribed under companies Act, 2013. The board
meeting dates are as follows:

11rh April 2016; 18th May 2016; 6th August 2016; 30th August 2016; 14th September 2016; 12t
November 2016 and 10th March 2017 respectively. The time interval between any two meetings did
not exceed four months.

The names of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held during the year is
given below:

Date of Board | Mr.Rajeev Sindhi Mr. KV Muralidhar Mr. Viswanath Whether
meeting DIN-00184701 Reddy Chibrolu requisite
Promoter DIN: 01881121 DIN: 01556254 quorum was
Managing Director Promoter Director Nominee Director present.
11.04.2016 Yes Yes Yes Yes
18.05.2016 Yes Yes Yes Yes
06.08.2016 Yes - Yes Yes
30.08.2016 Yes Yes Yes Yes
14.09.2016 Yes - Yes Yes
12.11.2016 Yes - Yes Yes
10.03.2017 Yes - Yes Yes

MEETINGS OF THE SUB COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

CSR Committee:

The company as on date has one Committee namely the CSR committee. The Board of Directors of

the Company in their meeting held on September 14, 2016 had constituted the Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee in terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013. During the
year under review, the CSR committee held one meeting on 12t November 2016 where in the
committee adopted the CSR policy, which was approved by the Board of Directors in their
meeting held on 12th November 2016. The committee also identified the NGO’s through which the
CSR activity can be undertaken and also approved the amount to be spent on CSR activity.
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Date of CSR Mr. Rajeev Sindhi Mr. KV Muralidhar Mr. Viswanath Whether
Committee DIN-00184701 Reddy Chibrolu requisite
meeting Promoter DIN: 01881121 DIN: 01556254 quorum was
Managing Director Promoter Director Nominee Director present.
12.11.2016 Yes No Yes Yes

DETAILS OF GENERAL BODY MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR
During the financial year 2016-17 the company conducted the following General Body Meetings:

Type of meeting Date Of meeting Members entitled | Number of members
to attend attended
21st Annual General Meeting 19t September 2016 11 5
Extraordinary General Meeting 13t May 2016 11 10
Extraordinary General Meeting 9th August 2016 11 10

Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Board of Directors, General Meetings & Committee
meetings.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby
submits its responsibility Statement:-

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the losses of the company
for that period;

iii. The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

v. The Directors are in the process of laying down internal financial controls to be followed by the
company for preparation of financial statements in a manner that such internal financial controls
are adequate and were operating effectively. Internal financial control means the policies and
procedures adopted by the Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

vi. The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors

Following the resignation by M/s Harinarayan Loya & company, the statutory auditor’s w.e.f.
11.9.2016, M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLC, Chartered Accountants were appointed as the statutory
auditors of the company at the 215t Annual General Meeting held on September 19, 2016. In terms of
the first proviso to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of the auditors shall be
placed for ratification at every Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the appointment of Walker
Chandiok & Co LLC, Chartered Accountants, as statutory auditors of the Company, is placed for
ratification by the shareholders.

In order to ease the operations, and to ensure timely compliances, the Board of Directors in their
meeting held on 10t August 2017, propose to appoint M/s. KN Murthy & Co., Chartered Accountant
Hyderabad (FRN 006823S) as Joint Statutory auditor for a period of five years from the conclusion of
22nd Annual general body meeting subject to ratification by the shareholders at subsequent Annual
General body Meetings.

Auditors Report

The statutory auditor have given in their auditor’s report certain observations/ qualification/
disclaimer with respect to matters specified in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, in the
annexure to their report on our audited financial statements for the financial years ended
31.3.2017.The auditors have issued disclaimer of opinion on internal controls over financial
reporting. These auditor observation/ qualifications/disclaimers do not require any corrective
material adjustments in the financial Statements. These auditor qualifications as well as our
management response to such remarks are annexed at Annexure A

Secretarial Auditor

M/s.VSS & Associates, (CP No. 10456: M No. A21692) Practicing Company Secretaries, Hyderabad
was appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2016-17, as
required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules there under. The secretarial audit
report for FY 2016-17 forms part of the Annual Report as ANNEXURE 3 to the Board'’s report.

Secretarial Auditor’s Report

The Secretarial Auditor in the Secretarial Auditor Report dated 10t August 2017 has opined that as
the company’s debt instruments are listed on stock exchange, the company needs to induct
Independent Directors so that valid the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration
committee, can be constituted. The company has taken note of it and is taking steps to induct
Independent Directors on Board

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of the annual return in
the prescribed format is appended as ANNEXURE 4 to the Board’s report.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

Your company as on date has 265 employees. People are our most valuable asset and they play a
vital role in the growth of your Company. Your Company also believes that the human capital is of
utmost importance to sustain the market leadership in all product segments and also to capture new
markets. In order to attract talent your company has devised new incentive plan for sales force.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE:

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 (1) of The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of
the Company is herewith annexed as ANNEXURE-5 to this report and Rule 5 (2) Of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, No employee of your
company is in receipt of remuneration exceeding Rs. 8,50,000 per month or Rs. 1,02,00,000 per
annum during the Financial Year.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

The details of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as follows:
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
Your company has taken adequate internal control procedures by which the cost of electricity
shall be identified with project and the company will provide an incentive for the concerned

department which consumes optimum power.

No additional investments for reduction of Energy consumption were taken up during the year
under review.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION : Not Applicable

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUT GO: (In Lacs)
PARTICULARS 2016-17 2015-16
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 893.43 774.76
FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO 11,357.03 10,287.31

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to a private limited Company.
As the company’s debt instruments are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange, the company is supposed
to constitute Audit committee. The company is taking all possible steps to induct required number of
Independent Directors, so that this committee can be validly constituted.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Your Company, in preparing its financial statements makes judgments and estimates based on sound
policies.
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The Management periodically reviews the financial performance of your Company against the
approved plans across various parameters and takes necessary action, wherever necessary.

The Company is in the process of establishing ‘internal financial controls’ in accordance with the
framework as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India to ensure accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable financial information.

There are adequate controls relating to strategic, environmental and quality related aspects.

CORPORATE POLICIES:

We seek to promote and follow the good level of ethical standards in all our business transactions
guided by our value system. The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 mandated the formulation of certain policies for all listed companies. The policies
are reviewed periodically by the Board and updated based on need and new compliance
requirement.

In addition to its Code of Conduct and Ethics, key policies that have been adopted by the Company
are as follows:

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

The brief outline of the corporate social responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company and the
initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year are set out in the Annual
Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as ANNEXURE 6 to this report in the format prescribed
in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE POLICY

Your Company strongly supports the rights of all its employees to work in an environment free from
all forms of harassment. The Company has adopted a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace as per the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules made there
under. The policy aims to provide protection to Employees at the workplace and prevent and redress
complaints of sexual harassment and for matters connected or incidental thereto, with the objective
of providing a safe working environment, where Employees feel secure. The Company has also
constituted an Internal Committee, known as Anti Sexual Harassment Committee to address the
concerns and complaints of sexual harassment and to recommend appropriate action.

During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaint on the subject.

DOCUMENT RETENTION AND ARCHIVAL POLICY

Pursuant to Regulation 9 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has mandated companies to adopt and implement a
policy on preservation of documents. Your company has devised Document Retention And Archival
Policy which is framed in line with the existing provisions of SEBI-LODR. This Policy covers various
aspects of preservation of documents and also safe disposal/destruction of the documents in line
with the statutory requirements pertaining to the same.
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy, however efforts are made to identify risk
and take appropriate measures. Nevertheless the company has an in-built mechanism and procedure
in place to safeguard itself and overcome any unforeseen risk.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMMITTEE AND POLICY:

As the company is a private limited company, the provisions of Section 178(1) relating to
constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is not applicable to the Company. As the
company’s debt instruments are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange, the company is supposed
to constitute Nomination and Remuneration Committee and policy. The company is taking
all possible steps to induct required number of Independent Directors, so that committees
can be validly constituted.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants, and
various Government Authorities for their continued support extended to your Companies activities
during the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their
support and confidence reposed on your Company.

For and behalf of the Board of Directors
SANDOR MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
RAJEEV SINDHI K V MURALIDHAR REDDY
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Director
Date: 10t August 2017 DIN: 00184701 DIN: 01881121
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Annexure A

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE TO
AUDITOR’S QUALIFICATION/OBSERVATIONS IN AUDIT REPORT:

The statutory auditor in their auditor’s report have indicated certain observations/
qualifications/ disclaimers with respect to matters specified in the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2003 (to the extent applicable) and Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2015, in the annexure to their report on our audited financial statements for the financial
year ended 31.3.2017. These auditor observations/ qualifications/ disclaimers do not
require any corrective material adjustments in the financial Statements. These auditor
observations/ qualifications/ disclaimers as well as our Company’s response to such
remarks are given below:

1. As stated in note 14 to the financial statements, the Company’s loans and advances
receivable in cash or kind as at 31 March 2017 include amount aggregating Rs.
142,023,411 in respect of trade advance, being considered as good and recoverable by
the management. However, in absence of availability of sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to corroborate the management’s assessment of recoverability of these
balances, we are unable to comment upon the recoverability of the aforesaid amount,
and its consequential impact, if any, on the accompanying financial statements.

> The management is of the opinion that these trade receivables are due from
parties, which in the opinion of the management, have good credit standing.
Hence management is confident of recovering the dues from the parties. The
management is taking steps to recover the amount due from the parties.

2. As stated in note 14 and 16 to the financial statements, the Company’s loans and
advances as at31 March 2017 include deposits amounting to Rs. 5,638,771 and trade
receivables as at that date include Rs. 79,251,562 being considered as good and
recoverable by the management. These amounts are overdue and are presently under
negotiation/ reconciliation with the respective parties. However, in the absence of sufficient
and appropriate evidence to corroborate management’s assessment of recoverability of
these balances we are unable to comment upon the recoverability of these balances and
the consequential impact, if any, on the accompanying Statement.

» The company participates in various tenders (international, national, government
and private tenders) for which the company is required to extend tender deposits.
These deposits/tender deposits pertain to “the tender applied but not won” by the
company. These tender deposits will be returned back to the company. Further,
regarding the trade receivable, the management is of the opinion that these
receivables are due from parties, which in the opinion of the management, have
good credit standing. Hence management is confident of recovering the dues from
the parties.

3. we were also engaged to audit the internal financial controls over financial reporting
(IFCoFR) of the Company as on 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our
report dated 29May 2017 as per Annexure B expressed disclaimer of opinion; and

» Commensurating with nature and size of the company, the company has always
had an adequate internal control system. The statutory auditor has pointed that
internal control system have to be documented as per the guidance note issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India which lays down the detailed frame
work of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (IFCoFR) which the
management has taken note of. The company is in the process of implementing
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4. The Company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

The fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year and
we are therefore unable to comment on the discrepancies, if any, which could have arisen
on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed assets is also
not reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets.

The company has been maintaining fixed assets registers. The auditors have
pointed out the register needs to include few more details as required under
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (to the extent applicable) and Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015. The management has taken note of it and is getting
it updated as suggested by the Statutory Auditor.

Once the fixed assets registers are updated as per the suggestion, the company
shall take steps to tag the fixed assets and carryout the physical verification of
assets on periodic basis.

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited to the
appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays in few cases. Further, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of Amount Period to
the Nature of Amount (in paid under which the Forum where dispute is
dues Rs.) Protest (in amount pending
Statute
Rs.) relates

Income Deputy Commissioner
Tax Act, | Income tax 31,108,266 Nil 2013-14 of Income Tax

1961 (Appeals)- Hyderabad

The company filed its appeal and the appeal was fully allowed by CIT(A)-3,
Hyderabad consequential order no . F No DCIT3(1)/Con .0r/2014-15/17-18 dated
30.6.2017 was issued. Pursuant to the order, the company was asked pay a sum of
Rs.8,650/-. The company has remitted the said amount and the case is closed.

6. The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments). In case of term loans, where there are stipulations by the
lenders regarding the utilization, in our opinion, the term loans were applied for the
purposes, for which the loans were obtained. In case of term loans, where there is no such
stipulation by the lenders, we are unable to comment as to whether these have been
applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

The loans specified herein were taken by the company to meet its general business
outlay and the company has utilized it for the same.
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In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188
of the Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc.,, as required by the applicable accounting standards. However, the
Company has not constituted audit committee as required under Section 177 of the Act.

Pursuant to the listing of debt securities of the company on stock exchange, the
auditors have given an observation on applicability of Audit Committee. Pursuant to
section 177 of the companies Act 2013, the audit committee must have at least 2/3
of Independent directors. Whereas section 149 of the companies Act which speaks
about the appointment of Independent Directors, which clearly mentions that its
applicability is limited to Public listed entities. Nevertheless, going forward, the
management has taken note of the observation made by the auditors and the Board
has set up a subcommittee to identify suitable candidature as Independent
Directors, so that a valid audit committee can be formed.

For and behalf of the Board of Directors
SANDOR MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
RAJEEV SINDHI K V MURALIDHAR REDDY
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Director
Date: 10th August 2017 DIN: 00184701 DIN: 01881121
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ANNEXURE - 1

FORM NO. AOC -2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NOT

APPLICABLE

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

Private Limited

section 186 of the
companies Act

Nature of contracts/ Amount
Sl. | Name(s) of the Nature of Name of related paid as
. . . arrangements/
No. | related Entity relationship party . advances,
transactions .
if any:
Rent;
sale and purchase done in
M/s Sandor Life . Group " Mr. Rajeev Sindhi the ordina%’y course of
1 Sciences Private ompany wit C business NA
Limited common (ijmr:lon Loans and Advances made
Director irector) pursuant to section 185 and
section 186 of the
companies Act
Rent;
. . . sale and purchase done in
Mr. Rajeev Sindhi the ordinary course of
M/s Sandor .
. (Common business
2 | Nephro Services - - NA
. . Director) Loans and Advances made
Private Limited .
pursuant to section 185 and
section 186 of the
companies Act
Mr. Rajeev Sindhi Rent;
(Common sale and purchase done in
M/s Sandor Group Director) & the ordinary course of
3 Animal Company ) business NA
Biogenics With common _ Mrs.. Gunj.an Loans and Advances made
Private Limited Director Sindhi Relative of | ;rsuant to section 185 and
Dlrect(?r is alsoa section 186 of the
Director companies Act
sale and purchase done in
WOS the ordinary course of
M/s. Sandor Mr. Rajeev Sindhi business:
Dialysis Services With the ’
4 (Common Loans and Advances made NA
Bangladesh common . .
. . . Director) pursuant to section 185 and
Private Limited Director .
section 186 of the
companies Act
sale and purchase done in
the ordinary course of
x/ c81: S"f‘;ldor Subsidiary Mr. Rajeev Sindhi business;
5 Baenl(I::(liessh with common (Common Loans and Advances made NA
& director Director) pursuant to section 185 and
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Rent;
sale and purchase done in
Proprietary Mrs. Gunjan the ordinary course of
Harmonica concern Sindhi (Relative business;
| Healthcare owned by of Director is Loans and Advances made NA
Director Proprietor ) pursuant to section 185 and
section 186 of the
companies Act
Rent;
sale and purchase done in
Proprietary the ordinary course of
Sandor concern Mr. Rajeev Sindhi business
7 Associates owned by (Proprietor) Loans and Advances made NA
Director pursuant to section 185 and
section 186 of the
companies Act
sale and purchase done in
Group ] . . the ordinary course of
M/s. Sandor ) Mr. Rajeev Sindhi business
8 Tescon Aqua company with (Common Loans and Advances made NA
. L common . ;
Private Limited Di Director) pursuant to section 185 and
irector .
section 186 of the
companies Act

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any: All
transaction has been entered into keeping in view the prevailing market prices and valuations.

Date of approval by the Board: As the company is a private limited company, the Board has
granted omnibus approval in their Board Meeting held on 11th April 2016.

All services, Trade related transactions are done as per the existing market norms and terms
and conditions of Payment.

For and behalf of the Board of Directors
SANDOR MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED

Ssd/- sd/-
RAJEEV SINDHI K V MURALIDHAR REDDY
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Director
Date: 10t August 2017 DIN: 00184701 DIN: 01881121
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Form No. AOC-1

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
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ANNEXURE - 2

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Sl Particulars Details
No.
Name of the subsidiary Sandor Tescon Sandor Sandor Dialysis
1 Aqua Private Medicaids Services
Limited Bangladesh Bangladesh
Private Limited | Private Limited
Reporting p§riqd for the subsidiary ' 1st April to 15t July to 30th 1st July to 30th
2 concerned, if different from the holding 31st March June June.
company’s reporting period )
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on
3 the last date of the relevant Financial year in INR BDT BDT
. R 1INR=1.22BDT | 1INR = 1.22 BDT
the case of foreign subsidiaries
4 Share capital 1,00,000 6,99,577 7,90,93,576
S5 Reserves & surplus 15,61,837 (6,17,427) (5,31,54,824)
6 | Total assets 1,99,22,099 2,52,731 17,97,41,000
7 | Total Liabilities 1,08,11,262 1,70,581 15,38,02,249
8 Investments NIL NIL NIL
9 | Turnover 3,86,72,628 8438 84,30,863
10 | Profit before taxation 20,77,092 7,524 (5,29,25,074)
11 | Provision for taxation NIL NIL NIL
12 | Profit after taxation 14,30,782 7,524 (5,29,75,660)
13 | Proposed Dividend NIL NIL NIL
14 | % of shareholding 51 90 99.99

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NIL
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NIL

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10.08.2017

Sd/-
Rajeev Sindhi
Managing Director

Sd/-
Ramakantha Tripathy
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
K.V.Muralidhar Reddy
Director

Sd/-
J.R.Nagajayanthi
Company Secretary
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures:

Name of asseciates/Joint Ventures

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date N
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end
No. \
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture N
Extend of Holding% N
3. Description of how there is significant influence \ NA
4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not
consolidated

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per
latest audited Balance Sheet

6. Profit/Loss for the year N\
i. Considered in Consolidation \
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation \

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: NIL
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NIL

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be
certified.

sd/- sd/-
Rajeev Sindhi K.V.Muralidhar Reddy
Managing Director Director
Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad Ramakantha Tripathy J.R.Nagajayanthi
Date: 10.08.2017 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE 3

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2017
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2017

To,

The Members,

Sandor Medicaids Private Limited
CIN: U51101TG1995PTC021906
8+-2-326/5, 4th Floor, Plot No. 1,
Road No.3, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad-500034

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Sandor Medicaids Private Limited
(CIN:US51101TG1995PTC021906) (hereinafter called “the company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Sandor Medicaids Private Limited’s books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017 (“Audit Period”) has
reasonably complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has adequate Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under;

(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable:-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
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(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

(f) The SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), Regulation, 2015

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. (To
the extent notified).

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock
Exchange.

During the period under review the Company has reasonably complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and
on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check
basis, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company
and have obtained proper licenses and their timely renewals:

(i) Drugs And Cosmetics Act
(ii) Bio Medical Waste (Management & Handling) Rules

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. Keeping in view the listing of
Non convertible debenture/Debt securities on listed stock exchange the company is required to
induct independent directors and constitutes Audit Committee and Nomination and
Remuneration Committees as per the Companies Act 2013.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent and company has reasonably complied with the relevant provisions
and secretarial standards in this connection, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All the decisions at Board Meetings and CSR Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously
as recorded in the minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board as
the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with other applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For VSS & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad SNEHA SANKLA
Date: 10.08.2017 ACS No. : A21692

C P No.:10456
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ANNEXURE - 4
FORM MGT - 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
(Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014)
Financial Period ended on 31.03.2017

L. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

S.N Particular Detail
1 CIN US51101TG1995PTC021906
2 Registration Date 04/10/1995
3 Name of the company SANDOR MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED
4 Category / Sub Category of NON GOVERNMENT UNLISTED PRIVATE
Company LIMITED COMPANY
5 Address of thg Registered office & 23_2?6/ 5, 4 FLOOR, PLOT NO. 1, ROAD
Contact Details BANJARA HILLS, HYDERABAD 500034
6 Whether Listed Company Yes
Karvy Computershare Karvy Selenium,
Name Address & Contact details of | Tower- B, Plot No 31 & 32.,
7 the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if Financial district, Nanakramguda,
any Serilingampally Mandal,
Hyderabad, 500032, India.

I PRINCIPLE BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall
be stated

o . NIC code of % to the total
S No Name & Descrlptlon. of Main products/ the product/ Turnover of the
Services .
Service company
1 Wholesale of phar;z;((:iesl),mcal and medical 46497 96%

II1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

S. Name & Address of CIN/GLN Holding/ Sup31d1a % of shares held
No the company ry/Associate

38% of post dilution
1 S:g?:;sl\;i?g; U85100TG2011 Associate share capital or (
Limited PTC072032 60% pre dilution

equity shares)

Sandor Dialysis
2 Services Bangladesh - Subsidiary 99.99%
Private Limited
Sandor Medicaids

3 Bangladesh Private - Subsidiary 90%
Limited
Sandor Tescon Aqua | U29253TG2015 C o o
4 Private Limited PTC100013 Subsidiary S1%
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Category wise Share holding)

i. Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity

No of Shares held at the Beginning of the
Category of Share year

Holders % of % of

Demat Physical Total Total Demat Physical Total Total

shares shares

No of Shares held at the end of the year %

Change

during
year

A.Promoters
Indian

a)
Individual/HUF
b) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - _
State Govt. - - - - - - _ _ _
Bodies
Corporate
Banks / FI - - - - - _ _ - -
Any Other - - - - - - _ _
Sub-Total (A) (1) NIL 985499 985499 85.45 985499 Nil 985499 4493 (40.52)
Foreign - - - - - - N _ N
NRI’s-
Individuals
Other
Individuals
Bodies
Corporate
Banks / FI - - - - - - - R N
Any other - - - - - - N R N
Sub-Total (A) (2) - - - - - - - _ _
TOTAL
SHAREHOLDIN
G OF
PROMOTERS

NIL 985499 985499 | 85.45 | 985499 Nil 985499 | 44.93 | (40.52)

NIL 985499 985499 85.45 | 985499 Nil 985499 | 44.93 | (40.52)

B. Public Share
Holding
Institutions
Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - N
-Banks / FI’s - - - - - - - - N
Central Govt - - - - - - - - N
State Govt - - - - - - - - -
Venture Capital
Funds
Insurance
Companies
FII’s - - - - - - - - -
Foreign Venture
Capital Funds
Others (Specify)
Sub —Total (B)
(1)

Non Institutions
Bodies
Corporate

i) Indian Nil 3856 3856 0.32 617489 Nil 617489 28.15 27.83
ii)Overseas Nil 100 100 0.01 Nil 521678 521678 23.78 23.77

Individuals

Nil 10000 10000 0.86 Nil 10000 10000 0.46 (0.40)

i)Individuals
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Shareholder
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 Lakh
ii)Individuals
Shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1
lakh

C) Others

(Specify)

NRI/OCB'’s
Clearing

Members

Sub-Total (B)(2) Nil 167676 167676 | 14.55 | 617489 | 590360 | 1207849 | 55.07 40.52
Total public
Shareholding Nil 167676 167676 | 14.55 | 617489 | 590360 | 1207849 | 55.07 40.52
B=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

Nil 95238 95238 8.26 - - - - (8.26)

Nil 58682 58682 5.09 NIL 58682 58682 2.68 (2.41)

C. Shares held
by Custodian for - - - i

ADR’s/ GDR’s
GRAND TOTAL Nil 1153375 | 1153375 100 1602988 | 590360 | 2193348 100 -
(A+B+C)
ii. Preference Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Preference shares: 0.01%
CCPS

No of Shares held at the Beginning of the No of Shares held at the end of the %
Category of Share year year °
Holders % of % of %};ar'?nge

Demat Physical Total Total Demat | Physical Total Total earg
shares shares y

A.Promoters
Indian

a) Individual /HUF - - - - - - - - _
b) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - _
State Govt. - - - - - - - - -
Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - _ -
Banks / FI - - - - - - - - _
Any Other - - - - - _ _ _
Sub-Total (A) (1) - - - - - - - _ -
Foreign - - - - - - - - _
NRI’s-Individuals - - - - - - - - -
Other Individuals - - - - - - - - -
Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - _
Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
Any other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-Total (A) (2) - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL
SHAREHOLDING - - - - - - - - -
OF PROMOTERS

B. Public Share
Holding
Institutions - - - - - - - - _
Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - _
-Banks / FI’s - - - - - - - - -
Central Govt - - - - - - _ _ _
State Govt - - - - - - - - R
Venture Capital
Funds
Insurance
Companies
FIl’s - - - - - - _ _ _
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Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

Others (Specify)
Sub -Total (B) (1) - - - - - - - - -

Non Institutions
Bodies Corporate

i) Indian
ii) Overseas - 587344 587344 100 - - - - (100)

Individuals

i)Individuals
Shareholder - - - - - - - _ _
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 Lakh
ii)Individuals
Shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1
lakh

C) Others (Specify)

NRI/OCB’s

Clearing Members
Sub-Total (B)(2) - 587344 | 587344 100 - - - - (100)
Total public
Shareholding - 587344 | 587344 100 - - - - (100)
B=(B)(1)*+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for - - - - - - - - -
ADR’s/ GDR’s
GRAND TOTAL
(A+B+C)

*note: the above mentioned CCPS share has converted and allotted in to equity on 10.03.2017

- 587344 | 587344 100 - - - - (100)

iii. Preference Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Preference shares: 5%
CCPS
No of Shares held at the Beginning of the No of Shares held at the end of the %
Category of Share year year Ch °
Holders % of % of du::;ge
Demat Physical Total Total Demat | Physical Total Total earg
shares shares y

A.Promoters
Indian

a) Individual/HUF - - - - - - - _ _
b) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - _
State Govt. - - - - - - - - -
Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - _
Banks / FI - - - - - - _ _ _
Any Other - - - - - - _ _
Sub-Total (A) (1) - - - - - - - _ -
Foreign - - - - - - _ _ _
NRI’s-Individuals - - - - - - - - -
Other Individuals - - - - - - - _ _
Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - _ -
Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
Any other - - - - - - _ _ _
Sub-Total (A) (2) - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL
SHAREHOLDING - - - - - - - - -
OF PROMOTERS

B. Public Share
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Holding

Institutions

Mutual Funds

-Banks / FI’s

Central Govt

State Govt

Venture Capital
Funds

Insurance
Companies

FII's

Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

Others (Specify)

Sub -Total (B) (1)

Non Institutions

Bodies Corporate

i) Indian
ii) Overseas

NIL

518395

518395

100

(100)

Individuals

i)Individuals
Shareholder
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 Lakh

ii)Individuals
Shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1
lakh

C) Others (Specify)
NRI/OCB’s
Clearing Members

Sub-Total (B)(2)

518395

518395

100

(100)

Total public
Shareholding
B=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

518395

518395

100

(100)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
ADR’s/ GDR’s

GRAND TOTAL
(A+B+C)

518395

518395

100

(100)

*note: the above mentioned CCPS share has converted in to equity on 13.05.2016 and allotted on

18.05.2016

iv. SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS:

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the end of
the year 31/03/2017

%

01/04/2016
% OF Change
Shar % Of In
Sl Name % P1 : ez % Shares | Shareho
No Numbe | Shares © /ge Numbe | Shares | Pledged/ lding
r Of of The Encumb r of Of The Encumb | During
Shares | Compan Shares | Compan | ered To The
ered To
y y Total Year
Total Shares
Shares
1 Mr. Rajeev Sindhi | 843918 73.19 68.29 843918 38.48 35.91 (34.71)
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2 Mrs. Gunjan Sindhi | 68081 5.90 NIL 68081 3.10 0 (2.80)
3 Mr. Samarth Sindhi | 11000 0.95 NIL 11000 0.50 0 (0.45)

4 | Mr. KV Muralidh
r Uraldiat |l eas00 | 5.42 4.88 | 62500 | 2.85 2.56 (2.56)

Reddy
985499 | 85.46 73.17 | 985499 | 44.93 38.47 (40.52)
v. Change in Promoter’s Share holding (please specify, if there is no change)
Cumulative

Shareholding at the

Shareholding during the
sl beginning of the year yeir &
’ Particulars
No % of total % of total
No. of No. of
shares of the shares of the
shares shares
company company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. - - - -
allotment / transfer /bonus/ sweat equity
etc):
At the End of the year

vi. Shareholding of top 10 share holders (other than directors, Promoters and
holders of GDR’s and ADR’s)

Shareholding at the Cumulative
beginning Shareholding during the
of the year Year

S. No Name of the Shareholder % of total % of total
No. of shares of No. of shares of
shares the shares the
company company
1. KODURU ISWARA VARAPRASAD REDDY
At the beginning of the year 95238 8.26% 95238 8.26%
12.11.2016:
Transfer of Share 95238 8.26% NIL NIL

At the end of the year - - - -

2. SANDOR LIFE SCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 3856 0.33% 3856 0.33%

18.05.2016:Allotment upon conversion 518395 23.63% 500051 23.81%

of CCPS

12.11.2016:

Transfer of Share 95238 4.34% 617489 28.15%

At the end of the year 617489 28.15% 617489 28.15%
3. INDIA LIFE SCIENCES FUND II LLC

At the beginning of the year 100 0.0001% 100 0.0001%

10.03.2017: 521578 23.78% 521678 23.78%

Allotment upon conversion of CCPS e e

At the end of the year 521678 23.78% 521678 23.78%
4. | RENU KHANNA

At the beginning of the year 5000 0.43% 5000 0.43%

No Changes Made During the Year NIL NIL NIL NIL

At the end of the year 5000 0.22% 5000 0.22%

22nd ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



Sandor s
Medicaids Pvi. Lid.
CIN No: US1101TG1995PTCOZ 1906
5. | I JATPAL REDDY
At the beginning of the year 5000 0.43% 5000 0.43%
No Changes Made During the Year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the year 5000 0.22% 5000 0.%
6. | LAURA SINDHI
At the beginning of the year 4000 0.35% 4000 0.35%
No Changes Made During the Year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the year 4000 0.18% 0.18% 0.18%
7. | RAKESH SINDHI
At the beginning of the year 54682 0.43% 54682 0.43%
No Changes Made During the Year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the year 54682 0.22% 54682 0.22%

vii. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel;
Sl. | For Each of the Shareholding at the Cumulative share holding
No | Directors and KMP beginning of the year during the year
No of % of Total No of % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of the
company company
1 Mr. Rajeev Sindhi 843918 73.19 843918 38.48
2 | Mr. KV Muralidhar | g554, 5.42 62500 2.85
Reddy
3 Mr. Vishwanath - - - -
Chibrolu
viii. Indebtedness:

Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due

for payment.

Secured Loans ]
Particulars Excluding Unsecured Securl.ty Total
. Loans Deposits |Indebtedness
Deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 32,19,13,157 | 5,49,71,597 | 28,01,375 | 37,96,86,129
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 32,19,13,157 | 5,49,71,597 | 2,801,375 | 37,96,86,129
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
* Addition 3,72,22,022 112,06,62,750 0 15,78,84,772
* Reduction 0 0 0 0
Net Change 3,72,22,022 [12,06,62,750 0 15,78,84,772
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 35,91,35,179 |17,56,34,347| 28,01,375 | 53,75,70,901
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 35,91,35,179 |17,56,34,347| 28,01,375 | 53,75,70,901
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i. Remuneration Of Directors And Key Managerial Personnel:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time Director and / or / Manager

SI.N | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD / WTD / Manager Total
o Amount
1. Gross Salary MD WTD MANAGER
(a) Salary as per provisions 60,00,000 - - 60,00,000

contained in section 17 (1) of
the income tax Act, 1961 - - - -
(b) Value of Perquisities u/s 17
(2) Income tax Act, 1961 - - - -
(c) Profits of lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income tax Act,
1961

Stock Option - - - -

Sweat Equity - - - -

PWIN

Commission
- As % of profit - - - -
- Others specify

5. | Others, please specify - - - -

Total (A) 60,00,000 - - 60,00,000

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sl. Particulars of Remuneration | Name of the Directors Total
No Amount
1. Independent Directors
e Fee for attending board / NA
committee meetings NA NA NA NA

e Commission
e Others, please specify

Total (1)
2. Other Non Executive
Directors
e Fee fqr attendlpg board / NA NA NA NA NA
committee meetings
e Commission
e Others, please specify
Total (2)
Total (B) = (1+2)
Total ) Managerial NA NA NA NA NA
Remuneration
Overall ceiling as per the Act NA NA NA NA NA
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c. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/MANAGER/WTD:

:l‘; Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
ceo | Company CFO Total
Secretary
1 | Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in - 12,00,000 | 21,00,000 | 33,00,000
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961 - - - -

(b)Value of Perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary u/s 17(3)
Income-tax Act 1961

2 | Stock Option NA NA NA NA
3 | Sweat Equity NA NA NA NA
4 | Commission
- As % of profit NA NA NA NA
- Others specify
5 | Others, please specify NA NA NA NA
6 | Total NA 12,00,000 | 21,00,000 | 33,00,000

ii. Penalties / Punishments / Compounding Of Offences:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal
companies | Descripti Penalty / (RD/NCLT? made if
Act on punishment / COURT) any (give
Compounding Details)
fee imposed
COMPANY
Penalty NA NA NA NA NA
Punishment NA NA NA NA NA
Compounding NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA
DIRECTORS
Penalty NA NA NA NA NA
Punishment NA NA NA NA NA
Compounding NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA
OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NA NA NA NA NA
Punishment NA NA NA NA NA
compounding NA NA NA NA NA
For SANDOR MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED
Sd/- Sd/-
RAJEEV SINDHI K V MURALIDHAR REDDY
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Director
Date: 10th August 2017 DIN: 00184701 DIN: 01881121
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ANNEXURE-5

Information pursuant to Section 197 of the Act Read with
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014.

A. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary during the financial year 2016-17 and
Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the company for the financial year 2016-17:

Remuneration of o) : . Ratio of the
. % increase in .
Director . . remuneration to the
Name of the For the financial Remuneration in median
Director/CEO/CFO/CS the financial year .
year 2016-17 remuneration of the
2016-17 employees
RAJE].EV SI.NDHI 60,00,000/- Nil 1:21.36
Managing Director
KV MURAI.'IDHAR REDDY 4,80,000/- Nil 1:1.71
Director
RAMAKANTHA TRIPATHY . .
Chief Financial Officer 21,00,000/- NA 1:7.48
J R NAGAJAYANTHI 12,00,000//- 20% 1:4.27
Company Secretary

*the position was created in 2016-17.

Note: The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was
Rs. 2,80,800/-

B. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial
year: 15.03%

C. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 265

D. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:
The average increase in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in
2016-17 was 4.45%. The Percentage increase in the managerial remuneration for the same
financial year was 30.74%.

E. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel are as per the Policy of the Company.

F. Employees drawing Rs 8.50 Lacs per month or Rs 102.00 Lacs per annum, whether
employed throughout the year or part of the Financial year — NIL

G. There are no employees in the service of the Company covered under Rule 5 (2) (iii) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
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H. Details of Top Ten Employees:
Wether the
employee is
Nature of Date of . a relative of
loyment emen t % of equity an;
Name of the . . . employ Qualification Age shares held . Y
Sr no. Designation Remuneration (wehther . of director/man
employee & experience MM/DD/YY of the .
contractual employment(M lovee ager, if yes
or otherwise) MM/DD/YY employ name of such
director and
manager
. Director -
Dinesh K . .
SMPL300 Doshi Sales & 2520000 Regular B.Com 10/1/2012 23/01/1967 Nil Nil
Marketing
SMPpL643 | Rashekhar | Finance 2000004 Regular CA 9/6/2016 | 20/04/1980 Nil Nil
Kubir Controller
Business i i
SMPLO15 P. Solomon . 1700004 Regular M.B.A 1/2/2007 13/04/1973 Nil Nil
Unit Head
smprory | K Chandra | General 1620000 Regular M.A 1/1/2007 | 24/11/1965 Nil Nil
Sekhar Manager
SMpLO24 | Davasagar | Business 1440000 Regular M.B.A 4/8/2008 | 03/11/1977 Nil Nil
Joshi Unit Head
Head-
SMPL322 Johg Logistics & 1419996 Regular B.Sc,CA 8/30/2013 08/10/1950 Nil Nil
Sequeira . 1B
Distribution
Neerai Regional
SMPL382 cerdy Head — 1380000 Regular B.Sc 3/12014 | 05/07/1961 Nil Nil
Bhandula .
North India
Sanjay .
Business . .
SMPLO76 Kumar . 1311000 Regular M.B.A 3/15/2011 20/08/1974 Nil Nil
. Unit Head
Singh
Mohan Regional
SMPL675 Davuluri Business 1220160 Regular M.B.A 3/10/2017 22/01/1971 Nil Nil
Manager
Azeez Business . .
SMPL549 Ahmed Unit Head 1220004 Regular M.Sc 1/1/2016 26/16/1971 Nil Nil

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 10t August 2017

For SANDOR MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED

Sd/-

RAJEEV SINDHI
Managing Director

DIN: 00184701

Sd/-

K V MURALIDHAR REDDY
Director
DIN: 01881121
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ANNEXURE - 6

ANNUAL REPORT ON
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSBILITIES (CSR) ACTIVITIES

The CSR is being reported from 1st April, 2016 to 31st March, 2017.

This report does not include the information about subsidiary companies.

This report does not include the information about any other entities.

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
programmes:

A. CSR VISION & OBJECTIVE:

In alignment with the vision of the Company, SMPL, through its CSR initiatives, strives to create
value in the society and community in which it operates, through its services, conduct &
initiatives, so as to promote sustained growth for the society and community.

The main objective of the Policy is to establish and lay down the basic principles and the general
framework of action for SMPL to undertake and fulfill its corporate social responsibility. The
Policy will function as a built-in, self regulating mechanism ethical standard and requisite
norms are actively complied with.

B. CSR ACTIVITIES

The areas where the company intends to focus its CSR activity are listed below. This is not an
exclusive list and the Company may include other activities, based on the areas identified and
felt need for improvement by the CSR Committee-

> Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care and
sanitation and making available safe drinking water;

> Promotion of education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation
skills especially among children, women, elderly and the differently ambled and
livelihood enhancement projects;

> Promotion of gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for
women and orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centers and such other facilities
for senior citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and
economically backward groups;

> Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna,
animal welfare, agro forestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality
of soil, air and water;

> Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and
sites of historical importance and works of art, setting up public libraries; promotion and
development of traditional arts and handicrafts;

> Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war windows and their dependents;

> Contribution to the Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the
Central Government for socio-economic development and relief and welfare of the
Schedules Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;

> Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic
institutions which are approved by the Central Government;

¢ Rural development projects.
e Slum area development.
e Such other activities as the Board may consider to be appropriate
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Preference shall be given to local area and areas around SMPL for spending the amount
earmarked for CSR.

The Board of Directors shall, after taking into account the recommendations made by the CSR
committee, approve the CSR policy for SMPL and disclose its contents in their report and also
publish the details on SMPL’s website, if any, in such manner laid down in the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

The Board of Directors shall ensure that SMPL spends at least 2% of the average net profits of
SMPL made during the 3 immediately preceding financial years in pursuance of its CSR Policy.

The Board of Directors may decide to undertake its CSR activities recommended by the CSR
Committee, through a registered Trust or a registered society or a company established by SMPL
under section 8 of the Act. — Provided that:

« If such trust, society or company is not established by SMPL or its holding or subsidiary
or associate company, it shall have an established track record of three years in
undertaking similar programs or projects;

« SMPL shall specify the project or programs to be undertaken through these entities,
modalities of utilization of funds on such projects and programmes and the monitoring
and reporting mechanism.

SMPL may also collaborate with other Companies for undertaking projects or programs for CSR
activities in such a manner that the CSR Committees of the respective Companies are in a
position to report separately on such projects or programmes.

SMPL may build CSR capacities of their own personnel as well as of their implementing agencies
through Institutions with established track records of at least three financial years but such
expenditure shall not exceed 5 (five) percentage of the total CSR expenditure of SMPL in a
financial year.

C. CSR EXPENDITURE

For achieving its CSR objectives through implementation of meaningful & sustainable CSR
programmes, SMPL will allocate 2% of its average net profits made during the 3 immediately
preceding financial years as its Annual CSR Budget.

CSR projects or programs or activities undertaken in India only shall amount to CSR
Expenditure.

Any unspent/unutilised CSR allocation of a particular year, will be carried forward to the
following year, that is, the CSR Budget will be non-lapsable in nature.

CSR expenditure shall include all expenditure including contribution to corpus, for projects or
programs relating to CSR activities approved by the Board on the recommendation of its CSR
Committee, but does not include any expenditure on an item not in conformity with the CSR
Policy.

D. IMPLEMENTATION

CSR programmes will be undertaken by various work centres/locations of SMPL to the best
possible extent within the defined ambit of the identified Project/ Program.

The time period/duration over which a particular programme will be spread, will depend on its
nature, extent of coverage and the intended impact of the programme.
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By and large, it may be ensured that the CSR programmes shall be executed in and around the
areas adjoining Company’s workplace and factories/ Project sites/ work centers.

E. MONITORING AND FEEDBACK

To ensure effective implementation of the CSR programmes undertaken at each branches, a
monitoring mechanism will be put in place by the work centre head. The progress of CSR
programmes under implementation at work centre will be reported to corporate office on a
monthly/quarterly basis.

The CSR Committee at the corporate office will conduct impact studies on a periodic basis,
through independent professional third parties/professional institutions, especially on the
strategic and high value programmes.

Branches and locations will also try to obtain feedback from beneficiaries about the
programmes.

Appropriate documentation of SMPL’s CSR Policy, annual CSR activities, executing partners,
and expenditure entailed will be undertaken on a regular basis.

CSR initiatives of SMPL will be reported in the Annual Report of SMPL & the Board’s Report in
compliance with Section 135 and rules made there under.

F. COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE:

The company has constituted a CSR committee consisting of following Directors:

Mr. Rajeev Sindhi - Managing Director
Mr. KV Muralidhar Reddy - Director
Mr. Vishwanath Chibrolu - Director

G. AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY FOR LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS FOR
THE PURPOSE OF COMPUTATION OF CSR: RS. 5,76,44,074/-

H. PRESCRIBED CSR EXPENDITURE (2% OF THE AMOUNT AS IN “G” ABOVE): Rs.
11,52,881/-

I. DETAILS OF CSR SPENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR:
a) Total amount spent for the financial year: 20,00,000/-

b) Amount unspent: NIL
c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year: As Mentioned in Table 1

J. IN CASE THE COMPANY HAS FAILED TO SPEND THE TWO PER CENT OF THE
AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS OR ANY PART
THEREOF, THE COMPANY SHALL PROVIDE THE REASONS FOR NOT SPENDING THE
AMOUNT IN ITS BOARD REPORT:

As per the Section 198 (calculation of net profits) the Company is required to spend Rs.
11,52,881/- (2% of the Average Net Profit of the Company for last 3 Financial Years) towards
CSR, as a good corporate citizen the company has spent a amount of Rs. 20,00,000/- in its
1st year of implementation through Shantha Vasantha Trust which works in the field of
Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills
especially among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood
enhancement projects.
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K. A RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE CSR COMMITTEE THAT THE

IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING OF CSR POLICY, IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH CSR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICY OF THE COMPANY:

The Implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy, is in
compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

For SANDOR MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
RAJEEV SINDHI K V MURALIDHAR REDDY
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Director
Date: 10th August 2017 DIN: 00184701 DIN: 01881121
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TABLE 1:
Amount spent
on the
Locations Amount projects Cumulative Amount
CSR project where.project Sef:tor in outlay or pro‘grams Expenditure ?pent:
or activity 1s Whlf’h tl}e (bt}dget) (1) Dlr.ect upto t-he Direct or
identifieq | Yndertaken project is project or Expenditure reporting through
(Local covered programs on projects period implementing
area/district) wise (Lakhs) or programs (Lakhs) agency
(2) Overhead
(Lakhs)
Promoting
Training and education,
educating including special
children, education
women, and employment ) Through
elderly, enhancing implementing
differently vocgtiﬁn skills Rs. Rs. ( sgzif}}ia
ambled, PAN India especially amon; -
scholarships, chIiJldren,ywomeng, 20,00,000/- 20,00,000/- Vasantha
special elderly and Trust,
education the differently Hyderabad)
and ambled and
increasing livelihood
employability enhancement
projects

The Board hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Activities is in
compliance with CSR objectives of the Company.

For SANDOR MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED

sd/- Sd/-
RAJEEV SINDHI K V MURALIDHAR REDDY
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Director

Date: 10t August 2017 DIN: 00184701 DIN: 01881121
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Independent Auditnr's Report
Tu the Members of Sandor Medicaids Private Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Sratcnicent

1. We have sudited the accompanying stendalome fnancal stacstoents of Sandor Medicaids
Private Limited (the Comprry’y, which compeise the Balance Sheet as at 31 Barch 217, the
Statement af Preofit and Loss and the Cash Flosr Statement for the year 1hen ended, and a
saminaty of the significant secounting policies atnl other explanatory ieformation.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

2 MThe ':;I.'].‘TI'J.'F-E.I:I.‘_?"E- Brard of Dircenonrs is u.:apun:;i-,‘:l]qe fiat the martera stared in Secdon 1345y ol the
Compandes Act, 2005 (the Act) with tespect o the preparaton of these standalane Bnancil
slatcments that pive o true and fae view of the finuncisl position, Enancial peslovmance and
casly fows of the Company in accordance with the accounting priniples gencrally accepred
in India, inchading the Avcounring Standards presetibed voder Secaon 133 of the A, fesze]
with Rule 7 af the Companies (Accoums) Ra'es, 2014 {as amended). This responsibility also
includes maintenanes of sdequare aceonnting records in seenrdance with the provisions ol the
Act for sifeguarding the assets of the Company and fou preventity anl detecing frands and
other irrepularitics; selection and applicadon of apprapriste accounting policies; 1aking
judgments and cstimates that are regsomahle and prodent; and design, mplementation and
maintenance of adejuae internal financial cunemls, that were operstng sileclively or
eosucng the aeomecy and completensss of fthe accountng recofds, televant to the peeparaton
and nresentadon of the standalnne financial starerenis that phve a toue aod feir view and are
froe Feote tnarerial nusstacsment, whether due o fraud or exror.

Wt

Cheriured Arcaniatie A sor T ok & G LL? B rpislwed) ot brated Rebiity
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Aunditor’s Responsibility

3, mar Iq‘:.HFn:I-I_I_HﬂJﬂiI_'p’ 1%t exptnEE 47 |_'-Pi1'|i|:-r. vt these seancdslone Hosrieis! stalernents ligsed on
eLaF i

4. We have taleen inta acconnr rhe provigions of rhe Acr, the accounnag and anditing standards
and matters which are requized to e included in the audit report onder the l}ru'.-'!hinn:- of the

Aot the Boales made thereander,

We vomulucted oot wodil i aceoedance with the Srandards on Anditing specificd ander

[y )

Secrinn 14310, of the Act Those Standards require that we comply with ethicsl
teguiremenls and plan s marftn the auadit aooobisin rensonahle assurance abone wherhcs
thege standalone Fnancial statemenss ace free from matena]l misscacenent.

&, An awdit mvolves porforenng procedares to obtin audic ovidence about the amounes and
the disclosures in the Hnancisl statements, The arccedures selected depend on the anlitor’s
fudgtnenl, mclading (he asscsament of rhe rghks of material msstarcment of the fnancial
al:*al:::n'u:nt:a, whether due to frand of eftor. [n mekiop those sl assessments, the audibos
considers interial fnanoal conirls releranr o the Company's prepamtion of the financial
srarcmenes thar pive 4 tue and fax view o oorder to design awdit procedures that ace
approptiate in the citcwmstances, An audil alsg ncludes evaluaring the apneopriarencss of
the accounting palicies used and the reasonableness of the accoundng estimates made by the
Company's Ditectors, #s well a3 evaluating the overal presentaticn of rhe financal
EFATCIC TS,

. We helieve that the sudit emdence we have obmined 15 sutfhcient and appropuase to provide
a basiys for out qualified wuctit apiniod o0 Lhese stundelone nanes ! sialemen s,

Basis for Qualified Opinion

8, Asstaced in noze 14 w che fnancis] stetments, the Company’s losg {enm loans and advances
receivable in cash or Mod as ac 31 Mazch 2017 dnclude smovol speregeting T1A2023,411 in
respect ol tmde advenee, being eonsidered as pond and recoverable by the managesenr.
[Momrever, 12 absencs of wvaduhility of sufficient approprute audit evidence (o cotrold e
b trangaement’s assessteent ol tecoverability of these halances, we ave unable to canrment
upon the recovecability of the afoteszicd smount, stul its conseguential impacy, i aay, on e
5|-;;|_:|_|j:[|,I_:|:-|,l_|}'i1'|g Finaneial sbateinen s,

9, As staled in note 14 and 16 10 the Anancial statements, 1he Company's long eom loans and
adveanices s st 31 Sarch 2007 incluce deposiis atvouning ra L3638 771 and mrade receivalbles a2
at that date inclode $79.251 562 being eoisideted us pood sl zecovesalls by the marapement,
These amoonrs are overdue and ace presentdy woder negotiation/reconcilisdon with the
respectve partes. Howerer, in the sbsence of sulficent sed sppropriste evidence (o corrobarie
tanagement's assessment of recoverability of these balances we are upable ro comment upon
the recoverability of these Lulsnees amd the sonsegusiizal dmpact, o any, on the sceompanying
finanaial zratements,

N
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Qualificd Opinion

i1

In our opinisn and to the best of our solormation and sceording o the cxplanatons given o
ug, except lor the possihle effects of the maters described in the Dasis Bor Qualified Cpinion
paragraphs, the aforesaid stapdalone lnaneaal siements give the informanon required by the
Act in the mainner 0 reguired and give a troe and fale view dn confurmity with the
secounting principles geneeally accepisd in lidia, of the stale of affsies of the Company as at
31 March 2007, and s prodil and ire cash flaws for the year ended oc chat date.

|,I

Report un Othet Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17.

Az requived by the Compaudes (Aodier’s Reporr) Creder, 2016 (the Ordes”) 1ssued by the
Cenital Government of India in ceems of Section 143(11) of the Acl, we give in rthe
Anvexure A, s statcment on the matlters specilied in patagraphs 5 and 4 of the Ceder

Further 1o onr comments in Annecoare 2 oas tequired by Seclion T4 af the Act, wo report

that

2. we have soupht el except for the posaiile effects of the marrees disclosed in the Basy foz

=

h,

| tf.r

e

Clualificd Cpinion paragraphs and pamspraphs 12(k) and 12050} below, obraincd all the
informaton sod explaialions which 1o the best of sur koowledge and belief were necessaty
for the parprose of aur audin

exvept Tor the possible effeces of the matters desciibed in the Basiy don Quabilied Cpinian
naragraphs sod pampmph () of Annezure A below, in our opénion, proper booles of
acoounl ag tequired by law have been kept by the Company so fur as 10 appears o out
examination of those boul;

the atandalone fnarcial statermenis cealt with by this report 2re In sgreement with the books
et wecouls

except for the possible elfects of the mattets described in the Basts for Qualilied Qpmion
paragraphs, in onr opinded, the wdotessid sfandalone financial statements comply with the
;'Lu_-cr_u_ml_ir.g Statulurds presceibed under Sccnon 133 of the Act, read with Ruole 7 of the
Companies (Aocounts) Rules, 2004 s areendiad;

the marces described i the Basds for Quoglitied Opadon parapaphs and paragraph 12(h) below,
i our apitici, may have an adverse effect on the Ranchioning of the Cotpary,

oo the basis of the written represenrations received from the dirsceoes snd taken on recond
lsy the Toard of Dhrector:, none of the direelots I8 I.'“ﬁll'.lLl.i'LIi.ﬁlld ag oo Al March 2017 Feoum
being az:._'II_'lr_l:i_1l_I_1'.l| ax o dizeetor in terms of bection 104072} of che Aoy

the gualiflication felating o the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewih
arc as stated 1n the Basls for Qualificd Dpinion pasagizpahs;

we were alao cngaped o audit the interna] finanedal conerals gver fnancial reporiag (1FCelPE) of
the Comnpaiiy #s on 31 Masch 2017 in conjunction with our avdit of the standslone financil
slatements of che r::l:impﬂu}' o1 the Y EUT etded oy thal clare and o et dated 20 :‘f'.-iﬁ.:,’ 2T as
per Avmenute 1§ expressed disclaimer of opinion; and

FAarmored Arcairiapie
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i, with tespect o the nther matrers to be inchaded in the Awdile="s Repost in scenrdance with Ruole
11 af the Companiss {Avdit sud Avdvors) Rules, 2014 (a8 amended), in ont opinion sod o the
best of our miormaiion and according to the explansdons given o us

(@ the Company, as derailed in Note 31 o the smndadone Lirncial stafcments, has disclosed the
inepact of pending litpadons en il Imsnceal positon,

(i) the Company did not heve any long tertn eoniracrs ncluding derivative conects fur which
thure were w1y smeterin] Gwresccabkle losscs

(i) rhere were nu smounis which weee required to be tansferred to the Invesior Fducation and
Protection Fund by the Compamr; and

fiv) The Compeny has provided disclosures in Note 32 (o the financial statements regarding
heildings a5 wel as dewlivgs in Speeified Bank Motes during the pedod from & Movember
2016 to 3 December 2016 Based on audic procedutss perfonmaed znd taling into
congideration the infermation sl explanations given to s, in owr opinion, the ol
seceipts unc toll ginoent deposiced in banks are in accomdsnce with the hooks of account
suainzained by the Company, 1lewever, awing o the nature of records: of the Company,
and in the shsence of sulficlent appropriate audit evidence, we wte unable 1o comment
g 1he appropeiaceness of disclosures made under specified bank notes and other
denominsdor netes Lar petiitted fnan-permitted  receipts and amount deposied in

Lrimthes,
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Anncxuee & to the Independent Auditor’s Repaort of even daie to the members of Sandor
Medicaids Privare Limited, nn the standalone finaneial statements for the year ended 31
March 2017

Based on the sudit procedure: performed for the puspose of seporting u true aied s vies on the
fingnecinl statetrents of the Company and  taking mro consideration  the ioformedon amd
explananons siven to us and the books of secount and oilber records exumined by v i the terinal
conrse ol audit, aod to the ese ol oure knewledge and belicf, wre repare that:

) fa)

The Company has nuol tmaintained proper records showing fell partculacs, ncluding
guantilzlive details and simarion of Exed assets.

(b The fied asscts have not kecn phyaically venfied by the management duning the year

ic)

i

fit)

g

L4

(1)

(v

(w1}

and we are therefore unable to comiment on the disctepances, if any, which coald
have stised on such vervificaton. In owe opinion, the frequency of verificadon of the
fimed assers is also not reazonably having repand to the siee o the Company ancd
fracure ol it asels,

The dtle desds of all e mtoavable propertics (which are included andes the head
"fixed assete”) are held in the name of the Company,

I gut opinion, the managemert has conducted physical verificadon of inventory at
veasonable intervals dutlng the vear and oo material diserepancizs bomreen physical
mvenioty and hook reeords were notnced oo physical venfication,

The Cotrpany bag not granced zny loan, seoured o unsecured to compenies, Ot
Limdted Liability Pactretships (LLIs) ot athet partics covered in the vegisher
trwintained undes Bocnon 8% of the Act Accordingly, the provizions of clavses
Aay, 3Nk and 3 e of the Orcder are not applicable

In our opinion, the Compsny hes cotaplied with (ke provisions of Sechan LT8G in
zespect of mvestments. Farther, in pur opicdon, the Company kas not entered it
any transaction covered under Section 183 and Section 180 af rhe Act in seapect of
luatts, puatsnlees and sconnfy.

In cur ooition, the Company has aoc accepred any deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Compunies (Aceepianee of Depesirs] Rules,
2014 (s wmended). Accordmgly, the provizions of clause 3(%) of the Order are not
applicable.

The Central Government has not specified malitienance of cost records ander sub
section (1) af section 148 of the Act, in respect of Compeny’s products and services
Aecardingly, the provisions of clavse 3(xi) of the Order are not appheable.

{vif)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fend, emplorecs’ state insorance,

Rte

Ehariunnd fecadilaile

incomne fax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added s,
cese and othet matetial stelotory dees, s applicable, have generally been vegularly
deposited o rhe appropiate authordties, though there have been slighe delays in few
cases, Further, no ondisputced smoanrs payable in respect thereof were outsranding
at the year-end for a peried of more than six monshs from the date they became
patyakale
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flay The does putstanding in vespsct ol ineome fax, sales-max, service tax, duty of

customs, duty  of exeise and value added tax on account of sy cligpate, are az
Tl v s
Mame of the | Batore ol dies Araaunt | Amoons Pesiond Lep | Hotwn where
sl &= paid which the mspul:r. 15
under AT pencing
Peorest ﬁ_:, relares
Imcomme Tax | Income tax a2l HiE 00 | =0l 2013-14 Dt‘p1.h:.'
Aot L eminlssinaer
of Tneomme Tas
| {Appoals)-
| ITvideralac

{wiiiy The Company has not detaolied in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial
ftsttulem ar & bank or pavernment or aty dues o debentureholders duorng the vear

iy The Company did nat mize moneys by way of dnitdal pubbe offer ar forther public
olTer (inchding debt insteuments). In case of rerm loans, where theze are stipulations
by the lencders tegruiding the urilisation, tn our epinden, the letm lans were applied
for the purposes, for which the lusns were ohluined. In case of teem Ioans, where
there i no such stipulstion by the leaders, we are unable w cotmment. as to whether
these have hoen applied for the putposes Ter which they were obtained.

(%) o fraud by the Company or su the company by i officers or employees has beea
noticed of repotted iluting the periad covered b ouar audit,

fxit The peovisions of Section 197 of the Acc ead with Scheduls ¥ o the Act are not
applicebile to the company since the company is not @ public company as defioed utcler
Jection 2(71) of the Adt Aconedingly, provisions of dause 3(xdy of the Order are not
i|1,:-1:-|i-:'y|:|'=i-e.

i) Tooows apimion, fe Company is not o MNidhd Conpsny, Accandingly, provisions of clause
35l oof che Odes e ool apilicable.

(wiii)  Ta o onimion, sll ansscrions with the relared parties aes iz compliznes with Section 1HS
ul the A, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclozed i the Aoancial

starcments etc, as pegquited by the applicable accoundng standasds. Howevet, The Cnenpany
has Nt comsliluted andit comupdctee as ceyuited wider Secrion 17 of the Ace

W

Aiartrod AERINTIZRG



53

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

(i)

|:}1"F",'

(v

| Susring the year, the company has not male sny preferantial aloiment of private placerent
of shazes or fully or paidly convertible debentares.

In our opindon, the Cotnpuoy bas nor enrered iato any con-cash treosactions with the
divsctars or persons connecred with dhem coversd vicler Section 192 ol the Act,

The Compeny is nor required to be registered under Section 45 I8 ool the Reseree Tank of

Tndia Ace, 1934,

NoAEU Gowf o [eel

For Walker Cha

& Co LLP
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Company Dvarview
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Sale of goeods
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Sandor Medicaids Private Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sandor Medicaids Private
Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as ‘the Group’), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash
flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). The Holding Company’s Board of Directors and the respective Board
of Directors of the subsidiaries included in the Group are responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Further,
in terms of the provisions of the Act, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group, covered under the Act are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

_error. These financial statements have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
“financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

o

Chartorod Accountants Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered with limited fiability

) . i with identification number AAC-2085 and its registered
Offices in Bangaluru, Chandigarh, Chennai, Gurgacn, Hyderabad, Kochi, Koliata, Mumbai, New Delhi, Noida and Pune . office at L-41 Connaught Circus, New Dethi, 110001, India
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Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit.

4. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether these consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial controls relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 11 of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

8. As stated in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group’s long-term loans and
advances receivable in cash or kind as at 31 March 2017 include amount aggregating 142,023,411 in
respect of trade advance, being considered as good and recoverable by the managemnent. However, in
absence of availability of sufficient appropriate audit evidence to corroborate the management’s
assessment of recoverability of these balances, we are unable to comment upon the recoverability of
the aforesaid amount, and its consequential impact, if any, on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

9. As stated in note 14 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group’s long-term loans and
advances as at 31 March 2017 include deposits amounting to ¥5,638,771 and trade receivables as at that
date include 79,251,562 being considered as good and recoverable by the management. These
amounts are overdue and are presently under negotiation/reconciliation with the respective parties.
However, in the absence of sufficient and appropriate evidence to corroborate management's
assessment of recoverability of these balances, we are unable to comment upon the recoverability of
these balances and its consequential impact, if any, on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

aee

Chartorod Accountants



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 83

Dualificd Opinion

In vur opinion ard to the best of our information ard according o the explanations given o ug and
based on the consideratior of the repars of e other gaditaors an separate financial stafements and an
the other financial information of the subsidiaries, encept for the possible offects of the mattors
described in the Basiz for Qualified Opinian paragraphs abeve, the aforesaid corsclicated financial
statemerts give the information regquired by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fadr
view In conformily with the accounting principles generally accepred in India, of the consolidatad szate
of atfadrs of the Group as at 31 March 2017, and their conzolidated profiz and their consclideted cash flows
for the vear ernded an that date

Other Maters

W did not audit the financial sttemoent: of fhroe sussidiarfes, whese finaocizl statements teflect okl
assebs of T199H05,2:24 and net sssets of 335,119,334 e 2L 51 MWazck 2007, botal revenuss of $45,712,110 and
ret cash Inflews amounting Lo T27,276 fae the yoar ended on that o, as considered in the comselidated
financizal statements. These fingncial stebements have been audited by other auditors whese reperts have
baen furnished 2o us by the maragement and our opirion on the consolidated financial statemenls, in so
far as it relals: to the amoonts and disclosures Included in respect of twese subsidiaries, and our repart in
terrms of sub-section (3] of Section 143 of the Act, inan [2e as il relales to fhe afnresaid sebsidiaries, ©s based
selely oo the reports of te other 2uditaes.

Crr opinion above ar e consolidated fmanciz] skremerts, and our repert oo other legal and resulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of e sbove mathers with respect o our seliance on the
work done by and the repors of the ether auditors,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Az vequired by Section T42430 of the Act, Based oo our 2udi and on the considerstion of the reports of the
other eaditors o samerats Francial statements and ooher Fnancial informaten of the sussidiaries, we
repork, to the extent applicabls, that

al We have sought and except fur the possible eftects of the matwers described in the Basis for
Cualiffied Opinion peragranks, paragraphs 12(8) acd 12(i}Ev) below, ootinec all the informraton
and explanations which ko P best of our kaewledge and beliel were necessary for the parpose of
our audil of the aforesaid corsolideted francial stabements;

bl In our opinion, propst books o accosst s reguited by Ll relatine S0 presaration of the aferesaic
consoiidated financial skatermerts have boen kept so far as it appears from our examination of Hose
backs and the reporis of Huae other auditors, mecept for the possible effects of the matters described In the
Gasis for Qualified Opinien paragmiphs and paragroph (a) of Aroecore Aoof the awdit report with
respecl Lo the separake finarcial statements of the Halding Cernpany;

€} The corsalidated financizl stabormoents dealt with by Shis report are in agreement with the relevant books
af acziunt maiskined fur the parpose of prepamdon of the corsolidated firancial statements;

d) E.!{-.‘:EF{ far the Flu.‘.ﬁil:ﬂe effecke 0f Fhe mmotbers described in the Basis for Chialificd l:l];'i_n'iq_'m
parag;‘aphs. iy oue ﬁpil'li-:'!l'.'l. the aforesaid codschdaqed Bnancial stabesnents i:n;:-mpl_'_u weith  Fhe
..']|.l:-i:l!'.'l'J.f‘lLi.I.'lF_el Standaeds prEH-::ri"_L-L:I pnder Sachan 135 af the Ack read with Zule 7 of the I'.':nmp.:m'ic'.t:
CAocounts) Buales, 2014 (as amended);

W
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¢t The matlers described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragrapks and paragraph 1230 below, 1= our
apiniom, miy have an adverse eifect on the functioning of the Haolcing Cemparny:

i On Fw Sasia of the written represenimtions recsived from the directors of the Holding Company and
taken an recerd by the Board of Directors of the Halding Company and the repart af the ether statutory
anditer of it subsiciary company, covered urder fhe Act, mone of the  directors of the Grougp
companies covered under Hhe Ael, are disqualificd as on 31 March 2017 from being appeintec as a
director in terms of Sectior T4 of the Acy

gl The qualificatians relating bo the maintenance of acceunls and other matters coneected thereith areas
stated in Ere Basis far Quelifisd Opinion paragraphs with eespact to the Helding Campany;

hy  We were alse cngeged to audit the internal fnancial coptrels over fnancial reporing it the Holding
Company 25 on 31 Merck 2017 in conjuncten with our audit of Be consclidated financial statement ot
the Group for the vear ended on that date and sur report deled 10 August 2017 25 per Annexure
axpressed disclaimer of epinion; and

it With respect to the other matters to e i aded in the Anditer's Repori in accordance with Fule 11 af
the Companies (Audit ard Avditor’s) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our epinior. and to the bt of cur
snfurmation and according 1o the oxplanaturs giver to us and based on the consideration of the repurs
of Hwe other puditors on separate Snincial statements es alse the other financial information of the
subsidiatios:

(il The consclideted financial stetements disclose e fmpact of pending litigatons an the
conaclidated financial pesitiar of the Group, 25 detailed in MNote 22 o the consclidaed financial
slalarmanks;

{ii) The Group, did net have gny long-term conmacts including derivative contracs for which there
weere @any malerial foresceablc losses;

fiii} There were no amcunts which were recuited 1o b mensforned 4o the Invester Bducation 2nd
Protection, Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary company, covered under the Acl
duting the year ended 31 barch 2017 and

fivi Thess consolidated fnancial statements have made requisite disclosures In ote 50 as fo holdings
as well as dealings in specificd bank noles during the pericd from 8 Movember 2076 to 30
Decernber 2016 by the [lolding Compary and its subsidiary compary covered under the Act.
Based on the awudit procedures performed and taking inm consideration the nformation and
exolanations given ta us and on consideration of the report of the other anditors on separale
finarcinl statements and other Enancial information, I our opinion, the tolel recelpts and fotal
ameurt deposited In banks are in accordance with the bocks of sccourt maintained by the
Group, Hewevar, owing to the mature of records of the Lolding Coempany, end in the aksence
of sufficient appropriate audit cvidenee, we are unable o commest upon the appropriatensss
af ffsclosuses made under specified bark nobes and cther denemination notes [or
prrmibed f nos-permitted receipts and ameunt deposited in banks with respect to the Hocding
Company.

Nekhe b @ik St
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Annexure to the Independent Aoditor’s Report of cven date to the members of Sandor Mudicaids
Private Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Independent Auditor's report on the Tnkernal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Acl”)

1. In conjusction with our audit of the conselidated firencial statements of the Sancdor Medicaids Private
Limited (“the Holding Company”) andd its subsidiaries {the 1lolding Company and it subsidiaries together
referved Lo as “the Group’), as al and for the year encded 31 Marck 2007, we were angaged o audil the
internal financial contrals over financial neperling {IFCelFE) of the Holding Company,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2 The Beard of Directors of the Helding Company is respansible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls hased on the internal centrol wwer linencial reporting crileriz established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated I £he Guidance Nobe on Andit of Intzrnal
Financial Conlrols over Financial Reporting issued by the Instimte of Chartered Accountants of India.
These Tesponsibilitios Include the design, implementation and maintenance of adegquate internal financial
controls Lhat were operating effectively for ersuring the orderly and efficier conduct of the company’s
business, inchading adherence to the company’s palicies, the safeguarding of the ity assels, the prevention
and detection of frauds and arrors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recosds, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial infoermation, as required under the Act

Auditors’ Respunsihility

d

Ohur responsihility is Lo express an opinion on the IFColR of the Holding Company as aforeszid, based an
conductng our audit in accordance with the Sindards on Auditing, issued by the Inssitule of Chartersd
Accountants of Tndia (ICAL and deemed to e prescribed under section 143710) of the A% to the exlent
applicable to an audit of TFCoFR and the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internel Fimancial Controls Ower
Finarcial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note'), issued by the TCAL

1. TBecause of the metter described in Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph below, we wene not able to alrtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence 1o provide a basis for an audst epinion on IR of the Holding
Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Conlrols over Tinancial Reporting

ul

A company's [FCoFR is a process designed Lo provide ressenabie assurance regarding the relianility of
financial teporting and Ehe preparation of financial stelements for external ourpeses in accordance with
aonerally accepted acccunting principles. A company s [FO0FE incudes thoss policics and procedures thal
{1} pertain tv the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositicns of the assets of the company; () provide reasorable assurance that
tansactions are recorded as necessary to permit preperation of fingncial statements in eccordance with
generally acceptes] accounting prineiples, and that receipts and expenditiees of the company are being
made only in accordance with suthorisations of managernent and directors of the company; and (Z)
prowvide reasonable asserance regarding provention or limely defection of unantharised acguisition, wie, OF
dispuosition of B company's assets that could kave a malerial effect on the financial staternants.

Disclaimer of Opinion
6. According to Hee information and explanation given to us, the Lalding Company has not ealtablished it
internal financial contral over finarcial reporting on criteria based on or considering the sssential

components of internal control stat=d in e Guidancs MNote on Audit of Intarnal Financial Conkzols oeer
Finarcial Reporting ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accounfan® of India.

\att
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Bucause of this reason, we ane anible 0 obtin suificient appraprisbe audit evidence to provide a basis for
our apinion on whether the Helding Company had adequate internal fenanciel controls over financial
reporting and whether such internal Hnencial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as al 31 NMarch 2017,

Explanatory paragraph

We have considered the disclaimer reporied above in determining the nature, timing, and exbert of audit
fests applied in our audit of the consnlidated Faeocial statenents of the Croup as at and for the vear ended
31 March 207, and the disclaimer does not affect our opinion on the conselidated financial statements of
the Sroup.
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Comsolidaied Statement of Profic and Loss for the e eaded 31 Morch 2027
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31 March 2017
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax and minority interest 97,112,356
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 27,354,161
Interest expense and other borrowing costs 74,437,383
Interest income {2,390,622)
Inventory written-off 16,083,598
Bad debts incuding provision for doubtful debts 14,312 341
Ugnrealised foreign exchange loss 113,686
(Gain on sale of investments {105,645,100)
Operating profit before working capital changes. 121,377,803
Increase m inventories (34,492,599
Increase in trade receivables (132,346,516)
Increase in loans and advances (77,458,098)
Increase in trade payables 28,765,920
Decrease in other current liabilities (8,601,771)
Increase in provisions 1,703,210
Cash used in operatons (101,052,052)
Income tax paid (net of refund) {36,528,469)
Net cash flow used in operating activities (A) {137,580,521)
Cash flow from investing actvities:
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (155,453,300)
Sale of non-current investments 123,245,100
Purchase of non-current investments (13,788,670)
Withdrawal from frxed deposits 5,378,460
Interest received 2,390,622
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (38,227,788)
Cash flow from financing activities¥®
Proceeds from issue of debentures 67,000,000
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 204,669,834
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net) 50,156,290
Repayment of long-term borrowings (102,182,317)
Interest paid (65,398,040)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 154,245,767

wee
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Sandor Medicaids Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

1. Nature of operations

Sandor Medicaids Private Limited (“SMPL” or “the Holding Company”) is a Company domiciled in India and
registered under the provisions of the esstwhile Companies Act, 1956, The Holding Company along with its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as “the Group™ or the “consolidating entitics™) is engaged in the business of trading
in high-tech bio-medical and bio-technology products. The followiag is the bref description of the subsidiaries:

a. Sandor Dialysis Services Bangladesh Private Limited (“Subsidiary company”) is engaged in the business of
providing dialysis services.

b. Sandor Medicaids (Bangladesh) Private Limited (“Subsidiary company”) is engaged in the business of trading in
high-tech biomedical and biotechnology products.

¢. Sandor Tescon Aqua Private Limited (“Subsidiary company™) is engaged o the business of supplying RO water
plants to healtheare sector.

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

a.

b.

iv.

.

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared in accordance with the accoundng standards nofified
pursuant to the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) (the “Rules™) which are deemed to be
applicable as per Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the Companies {(Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (as amended) and other recognized accounting practices and policies generally accepted in India incuding
the requirements of the Act (“Indian GAAP”). The financial statements have been prepared on acerual basis. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible in the same manner as the Holding
Company’s separate financial statements.

Principles of consolidation

Investment in subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements are accounted in accordance with accounting
principles as defined in the AS 21 “Consolidated financial statements” notified under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 (as amended). The consolidated
financial statements are prepared on the following hasis:

Pinancial statements of subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line-hy-line basis by adding rogether the book
values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after elininating intra-group balances, intra-group
transactions and the unrealised profits or losses.

The difference between the cost to the Group of investments in subsidiaries and the proportionate share in the
equity of the subsidiary as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognized in the consolidated financizl statements as
Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be. Any gain/loss arising upon acquiring additional stake in subsidiary
from patties outside the group is accounted for as goodwill/ capital zeserve. Similarly, any gain/loss afsing upon
dilution of stake in subsidiary in favor of partes outside the group is recotded in capiral reserve.

Minorities” interest in met profits of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the
income in order to arrive at the net income attdbutable to the shareholders of the Holding Company. Their share of
net assets is identified and presented in the consolidated balance sheet separately. Where accumulzted losses
attributable to the minorities are in excess of their equity in the absence of the contractual obligation on the
minotities, the same is accounted for by the Holding Company.

As far as possible, the consolidared financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented, to the extent possible, in the same
manner as the Holding Company’s stand-alone financial statements.

The financial statements of the cotities used for the putpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date
as that of the Holding Company te. year ended 31 March 2017.

U
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Summary of significant accounting policies and othier explanatory information

(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

vi

C.

As per Accounting Standard 21, only those notes which are material need to be disclosed. Materiality for this
purpose 1s assessed in relation to the information contained in the consolidated financial statements. Further,
additional statutory information disclosed in separate financial statements of the subsidiary and/or a parent having
ne bearing on the true and fair view of the consolidated financial statements arve not disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2017 include the finandal statements
of the following entites:

Name of the consolidated entities Country of Nature of %% of holding
Incorporation mterest 31 March 2017

Sandor Dialysis Services Bangladesh Bangladesh Subsidiary - 99.99%

Private Limited (SDSBPL)

Sandor Medicaids (Bangladesh) Pavate  Bangladesh Subsidiary 90%

Limited (SAMBPL)

Sandor Tescon Aqua Private Limited India Subsidiary 51%

(STAPL)

Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Indian GAATP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements znd the results of operations durning the
reporting period. Examples of such estimates include provision for doubtful receivables, classification of assets and
liabilities into current and non-current, future obligations under employee benefit plans, income taxes, deferred
taxes and the useful lives of fixed assets, etc.

Although these estimartes ate based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results
could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates 1s recognised prospectively in the current
and future periods.

d. Significant accounting policies

Mge

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of
purchase prce, freight, non-refundable duties, taxes and any other cost attdbutable to brnging the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at their
estimated net realizable values or net book values, whichever is lower.

i. Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on written down wvalue method over the useful lives of assets prescribed
under Schedule II of the Act. In respect of additions, depredation is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of
acquisition /installation and depreciated over their remzining useful life, as prescribed in Schedule IT of the Act.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the term of lease.

Impairment of assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units ar each Balance Sheet date are reviewed for impaitment of
assets. If any indication of such impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and
impairment is recognized if the carrying amount of these assers exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the esdmated future cash
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e

vi.

flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average cost of capital. After impairment, depreciation 13
provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent thar it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
collectability is reasenably assured.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
been passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. The Group collects sales taxes and value added taxes
(VAT) on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Group. Hence,
they are excluded from revenue.

Sale of services
Service income is recognised based on the terms of the agreement with the respective customers.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised based on time proporticnate basis.

interest Income
Interest income is recognised on time proportionate basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.

. Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred rax.

Current tax
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
applicable tax laws of the respective countries.

Deferred tax
Deferred income taxes reflect the Impact of current year timing differences berween taxable income and accounting
income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting
income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax
rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the Group has unabsorbed depreciation or carry
forward tax losses, all deferred rax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing
evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recognised to the extent that it has become
reasonably certain or virrually cerrain, as the case may be that future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance
sheet date. The Group writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer
reasonzbly certain or virtualy certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down 15 reversed to the extent that it becomes
teasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of
calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profir or loss for the period artributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.
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vii,

viil.

Xi.

xii,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original maturity
of three months or less.

Leases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains all risk and benefits of ownesship of the leased items are classified as

operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized 23 an expense in the Consolidated Statement af profit and
loss o a straight line basis over the lease term.

. Inventories

Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs include purchase price and other direct
expenses incurred to bring inventories to its present condition and location. Selling price in the ordinary course of .
business reduced by the estimated costs of completion and costs to affect the sale. Cost is determined on weighted
average cost basis.

. Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than u year are classified as current
investment. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at lower
of cost or fair value determined o an individual investment basis. Long term investments are carrted at cost.
However, provision for diminution in vaiue is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the
mvestments.

Employee benefits

Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are
charged to the Consolidated Statement of profir and loss of the period when the contributions to the respective
funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a post-employment defined benefit obligation. The lability recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet date, together with adjustments
for past service costs. An independent actuary using the projected unit credit method calculates the defined benefir
obligation annually.

Actuarial gains ot losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are credited or
charged to the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss in the period in which such gains or losses arises and are
not deferred.

Foreign currency transactions

Initial recognition
Foreign cutrency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency existing as at the date of the transaction, -

Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate as of reporting date. Non-monetary items
which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were
determined.

aee
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xiii.

xiv.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of foreign currency monetary items or on reporting monetary items
of the Group at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in
previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year n which they arise.

Foreign currency translation

Exchange difference relating to integral foreign operations is recognized in the Coasolidated Statement of profit and
loss. A foreion currency transaction is recorded, on. initial recognition in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of
the transaction. In accordance with the accounting prnciples prescribed under Accounting Standards 11 “The
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’ as notified by the Rules, the Group has designated 1ts foreign
operations, as ‘Integral foreign operation”. The Company among other things considers below mentioned factors for
determining whether foreign operations are integral or non-integral:

2. Whether the activities of the foreipn operation are carried out with a significant degree of autonomy from those
of the Holding Company;

b. Whether the activities of the foreign operation are financed mamly from its own operations or local borrowings
rather than from the Holding Company;

c. Whether costs of labour, material and other components of the foreign operation’s products or services are
primarily paid o settled in the local currency rather than the reporting currency; and

d, Whether cash flows of the Holding Company are insulated from the day-ro-day activities of the foreign
operation rather than being directly affected by the activities of the foreign operation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recogaised when the Group has 2 present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required o settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates. A disclosure of the contingent liability is made when there is a possible or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.

Wee
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3 Share capital
Authorized

Equity shares of T10 each

Compulsonly Convertible Preference
Shares (CCPSY) of 426 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

Equity shares of T10 each, fully paid-up

(2) Reconciliation of share capital

Equity shares of 10 each, fully paid-up

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

Add: Shares issued during the year
Shares outstanding at the end of the year

CCPS of ¥202.50 each, fully paid-up

Shares curstanding at the beginning of the year
Less: Shares converted into equity shares during the year

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

CCPS of T426 each, fully paid-up

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

Less: Shares converted into equity shares during the year

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

31 March 2017
Number Amount
12,497,519 124,975,190
587,345 250,208,970
13,084,864 375,184,160
2,193,348 | 21,933,480
2,193,348 21,933,480
31 March 2017
Number Amount
1,153,375 . 11,533,750
1,039,973 10,399,730
2,193,348 21,933,480
31 March 2017
Number Amount
518,395 104,974,988
(318,395) (104,974,988)
31 March 2017
Number Amount
587,344 118,937,160
(587,344) (118,937,160)

During the vear, all the outstanding CCPS were converted into equity shares in accordance with the tetms and

conditions of the respective share purchase agreements.

(b) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of T10/- each. Each holder of equiry shares 15

entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the share

holders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidatien, the equity share holders are eligible to

receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any, in proportion to their

sharcholding.
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Shareholders holding more than five percent of paid-up equity share capital
31 Mazch 2017
‘ Number % holding
Equity share of Y10 each
Rajecv Sindhi 843,918 38.48%
Sandor Life Sciences Prvate Limited 617,489 28.15%
India Life Sciénces Fund IT, LLC o 521,678 23.78%
4 Reserves and surplus
31 March 2017

Capital redemption reserve 72,039
Securides premium account
Balance at the beginning of the year 10,307,680
Add: Received during the year 344,783,802
Balance ar the end of the year 355,091,482
Dehenture redemption reserve 3,507,220
Surplus in Consolidated Statement of profit and loss
Opening balance ‘ 184,325,680
Add: Profit for the year 61,749,217
Less: Transferred to Debenture redemption reserve {3,507,220)
Balance at the end of the year 242 567,677

601,238,418

5 Long-term borrowings
31 Maxch 2017

Unsecured
- Non-Convertble Redeemable Debentures ("NCDs") 67,000,000
Term loans
- from banks 5,460,249
- from others 103,174,099
Secured
Term loans
- from banks 327,930
- from others 87,797,666

263,759,944
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (reler note 10) 83,079,557

180,680,387

(=)

The Holding Company has allotted 670 NCDs of face value of ¥1,00,000 each fully paid-up on 10 August 2016. NCDs
carty intexest rate of 16.43% per annum. The interest is payable on quarterly basis as per dates specified in the trust

deed. The debentures arc redcemable at par in single instalment on 24 August 2019.

N
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Name of tf:l ;:;:zniizi Interest rate p.a.
§. No. | bank/financia Balance outstanding Type of security
s repayment terms
linstitunon | 31 March 2017 (%)
1 Capiral First 2,050,551 119% Repayable over 8§ Unsecured term loan
Limited months  In  equated
monthly instalments
2 HDFC Bank 598,257 [17.25% Repayable  over  5|Unsecured teem loan
months  in  equated
monthly instalments
3 Jain Sons 74,939,494 [18.26%-19.25% Repayable over 5 to 34|- Unsecured loan
Finlease months - Personal guarantee by Mr. Rajeev Sindhi and Mr.
Limited KV Reddy
4 Tata Capital 16,233,800 |Floating rate Repayable over 1 to 121 First and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on
Financial currently ar 14.5%  |months  in  equated|un-encumbered movable fived assets of corporate
Services monthly instalments  |guarantor M/s. S8andor Life Sciences Private Limited
Limited with a value of T180 lakhs
- Tirst and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on
un-encumbered movable fixed assets with a book value
of ¥355.90 lakhs.
- Extension of cash collateral for T30 lakhs by way of]
secutity deposit for the tenor of the loan
~ Uncoadificnal and irrevocable corporate guarantee by
/5. Sandor Life Sciences Private Limired ‘
- Unconditional and irrevocable persenal guarantee by
Mr, Rajeev Sindhi
5 Magma Fincorp 2,520,719 |20.25% Repayable over 7i- Unsecured loan
Limited months in  equated|- Personal guaranice by Mr. Rajeev Sindhi and Mr.
monthly instalments  [KCV.M. Reddy
G Edelweiss 1,469,589 |19% Repayable  over  11|- Unsecured loan
Retail Finance months in  equatedj- Personal guarantee by Mr. Rajeev Sindhi and Mr
Limited monthly instalments  {K.V.M. Reddy
7 MAS  Financial 11,700,226 [17.50% Repayable over 13|- Unsecured loan
Services months  in  equared|- Personal guarantee by Mr. Rajeev Sindhi and Mr,
Limired monthly instalments | K.V M. Reddy
8 Reliance Capital 9,804,839 [16% Repayable over 5 to 22|Hypothecation of medical equipment
months
g Kotak 3,895,412 [18.39% Repayable over  21jUnsecured tetm loan
Mahindra Bank months In  equated
monthly instalments
10 Aditya Birla 7.500,000 [15.75% Repayable over 36 Unsecured term loan
Finance Limited months in  equated
monthly instabments
11 Relipare Pinvest 2,993,521 119.52% Repayable over 19|Unsecured term loan
Limited months  in  equated
monthly instalments

it
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5(b) Terms and conditions of term loans from banks and financial institutions {(contnued)

N Qutstanding
ame of bal Interest rate p.a. Balane istandine
S. No. | bank/financia | oot 25 77 alance ovts e Type of security
. repayment terms
linstituton | 31 March 2017 (%)
|12 Ratnakar Bank 966,579 [19% Repayable  over  8jUnsecured term loan
months  in  equated
monthly instalments
i3 ICICI Bank 3279350 |11.51% Repayable  over 27 Hypothecation of vehicle
months i equated
monthly instalments
14 State Bank of] - [13.55%% - -Secured by way of first charge on all current assets of]
India the Holding Company and personal guarantees of]
certain directors and shareholders, Further, the loan s
secured by way of collateral security of the building
and land of the Holding Company. Further, this loan is
secured by collateral assets of the Managing Directox
‘ and certain shareholders.
15 Infrastructure 61,759,028 |9% Repayable in 24 equal|-Lien on all shares of the Company
Development gquarterly instalments  |-First ranking charge over all the plant and machinery,
Company ‘ equipment and other fixed assets, project movable
Limited N assets, book debrs, receivables, stocks, inventories,
project accounts, immovable propertics, guarantees,
performance bonds, letters of credit and insurance
policies of the Subsidiary
Personal puarantee by certain dicectors of the
Subsidiary
-Contingent equity guarantee/letter of
credit/irrevocable bank guarantee from a bank for an
amount of atdeast 0.5% of the total estimared project
cost for funding any cost overrun,
196,759,945
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6 Other long-term liabilities o
31 March 2017

Security deposit . 2,801,375
2,801,375
7 Provisions
31 March 2017
Long-term provisions
Provision for gratuity (refer note 25) 3,676,399
3,676,399
Short-term provisions
Provision for income tax 19,209,221
Provision for gratuity (refer note 253) 557,265
Others : 280,402
20,046,888
8 Short-term borrowings
31 March 2017
Loans repayable on demand (secured)
from bank ‘ 332,768,610
332,768,610

Cash credit facility is secured by way of first charge on all current assets of the Company and personal guarantees of
certain directors and shareholders. Further, the loan is secured by way of collateral security of the building and land of
the Company. Further, this loan is secured by collateral assets of the Managing Director and certain shareholders. These
loans carxy an interest rate of 12,45 % p.a. ‘

9 Trade Payables
Based on the information available with the Company, there are no suppliers who are registered as micro and small
enterprises under the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 zs zt 31 March
2017.

10 Other current liabilides

31 March 2017

Current maturities of long term botzowings (refer note 5) 83,079,557
Interest accrued but not due 5,001,298
Interest accrued and due 4,038,045
Creditors for capital goods 36,556,019
Creditors for expenses 4,644,853
Advances received from customers 6,683,147
Statutory liabilities 11,429,508
Qther labilities 21,300,585

172,933,012

wee
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12 Non-current investments

31 March 2017
Trade, unquoted, fully paid-up (at cost)
Jnvestment in others
6,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) equity shares of 10 cach, fully paid-up in 60,000
Sandor Orthopedics Private Limited
Total 60,000
Share application money pending allotment
Sandor Orthopedics Private Limited 8,041,145
Vphore Labs Provate Limited 5,687,525
My Health Records 250,000
ARM Infosoft Private Limited 50,000
Total 14,028,670
14,088,670
Aggrepgate amount of unquoted investments 60,000
13 Deferred tax asset {net) .
31 March 2017
On account of:
Depreciation 63,946
Employee benefit expense 1,744,776
1,813,722
14 Loans and advances
(Unsecured, considered good)
31 Masch 2017
Long-term
Security deposits* 17,432,272
Advances receivable in cash or kind or value to be received™* 168,485,113
Capital advances 17,386,101
Prepaid expenses 1,510,960
204,814,446
Short-term
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or value to be received 64,105,096
Staff advances 9,125,130
Balance with government authorites 21,354,565
Prepaid expenses 3,337,954
97,922,745

* As ar 31 March 2017, certain loans and advances aggregadng to 5,638,771 are overdue from certain parties and under
reconciliation by the Management. The Management is of the opinion that the aforesaid amounts are realisable in due
course and hence no adjustment has been made in the books.

| e B
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#* As at 31 March 2017, an advance of 142,023,411 is overdue from a related party. The Management is of the opinion
that the aforesaid amount is realisable in due course and hence no adjustment has been made in the books.

15 Inventories

31 March 2017
Finished goods (at cost) o 598,553,824
Goods in transit o - 53,186,898
..... 651,740,722
16 Trade receivables
(Unsecured}
31 March 2017
Amount due for a perlod exceeding six months
- Considered good oL 66,721,347
- Considered doubtful Tk 1,878,692
Less: Provision for doubtful debrs R (1,878,692)
DRIREE 66,721,347
Orther recervables
- Constdered good _ I 423,279,646
S 423,279,646
490,000,993

As at 31 March 2017, trade receivables aggregating to 79,251,562 are overdue from certain pasties. The management is
of an opinion that the aforesaid amounts aze realisable in due course and hence no adjustment has been 1made in the
books.

17 Cash and bank balances

31 March 2017
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand o 5,007,673
Balances with banks in current accounts.. . - 4,905,050
: 9,912,723
Other bank balances
Fixed deposits with maturity of more than 3 rnonths but less than 12 monrths 26,056,089
' 35,968,812
18 Revenue from operations
31 March 2017
Sale of products - 1,685,230,062
Sale of services 7 . L 75,441,282
' 1,760,671,344

NS
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19 Other income

Interest on deposits

Rental income

Exchange fluctuaticns {net)
Miscellanecus income

20 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Inventores at the beginning of the year
Inventories at the end of the year
Add: Inventory written-off

21 Employec benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Grarity

Conuibution to provident and other funds
Directors rermuneration

Staff welfare expenses

22 Finance costs

Interest expense
Other borrowing costs

Bank charges

W&
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31 March 2017

2,390,622
6,020,030
6,880,309
5,162,700

20,453,661

31 March 2017

633,403,721
598,553,824
16,083,598

18,766,299

31 March 2017

108,376,067
2,942,288
3,033,786
8,880,000

775,418

124,007,559 -

31 March 2017

70,429,551
4,007,832
3,337,561

77,774,924
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23 Other expenses

31 March 2017

Power and fuel 4,341,148
Rent 11,043,761
Repairs and maintenance
- Building 1,499,162
- Qthers 4,244,290
Legal and professional charges ‘ 20,163,962
Rates and raxes 3,735,513
Travelling and conveyance 16,333,315
Communication 4,107,417
Remuneration to auditors
- Andit fee : 856,352
Printng and stationery 1,346,010
Courler and cargo charges 9,642,392
Bad debts 12,433,645
Provision for doubthul debts . 1,878,692
Qctroi charges s 1,519,758
Lodging and boarding . 4,905,995
Clezaring and forwarding . 11,272,254
Consumables and zccessories ' 2,845,710
Business promotion 14,037,885
Selling and distribution expenses - 7,407,440
Corporate social responsibility expenses 2,000,000
Inventory written-off o 16,083,598
Miscellaneous expenses 14,874,736

‘ 167,073,039

24 Related party disclosures
(a) Names of the related parties and description of relationship

Name of the related party MNature of relationship
Mr. Rajeev Sindht Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Mrs. Gunjan Sindhi Relative of KMP
Sandor Life Sciences Private Lirnited
Sandor Orthopedics Private Limited
Sandor Animal Biogenics Private Limited Enterprises over which KMP has a
Sandor Stones Private Limired significant influence

Sandot Nephro Services Private Limited
ARM Infosoft Private Limited

Sun Archean Abrasives

N . Enrerprises over which relatives of
Sandor Associates ®

) KOMDP have a significant influence
Harmonica Healthcare &

W
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{b) Transactons with related parties

Sandor Orthopedics Private Limited

- Rental income

- Purchase of goods

- Reimbursement of expenses incurred by the Company

Rajeev Sindhi

- Remuneration

- Loan recerved

- Loan repaid

- Expenses incurred on behzlf of the Company

Gunjan Sindhi
- Remuneration

Sandor Life Sciences Private Limited

- Rental income

- Reimbursement of expenses incurred by the Company
- Sale of services (diagnostc testing)

- Purchase of services (testing services)

- Revenue collecred on behalf of the Company

- Advances given

- Advances recovered

- Sale of investments

Sandor Animal Biogenics Private Limited
- Rental income
- Purchase of goods

- Reimbursement of expenses incurred by the Company

Sandor Stones Private Limited
- Rental mcome

- Reimbursement of expenses incurred by the Company

Sandor Nephro Services Private Limited

- Rentzl income

- Advances given

- Advances recovered

- Reimbursement of expenses incurred by the Company
- Sale of goods

- Collections on behalf of the company

Sun Archean Ahrasives
- Rental income

- Advances given

- Advances recovered

Sandor Associates

- Rental income

- Reimbursement of expenses incurred by the Company
- Advances given

- Advances recovered

106

31 March 2017

88,800
49,444,508
8,483,249

6,000,000
195,995,290
196,527,116

6,609

1,200,000

5,155,180
14,862,904
9 486,901
928,580
2,733,972
60,625,693
42,348,320
123,245,100

80,554
17,496,357
2,689,044

80,554
120,981

878,724
26,048,432
4,304,721
3,413,756
5,067,527
18,094,867

161,100
23,600,000
23,600,000

80,554

4,500
3,112,068
3,112,068
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Harmonica Healthcare

- Rental income : 149,237
- Adwvance given 319,376,851
- Advance recovered . 283,040,740

(c) Balances receivable®/ (payable)

@

31 March 2017
Sandor Orthopedics Private Limited ’ (27,823,604)
Mr, Rajeev Sindhi 64,534
Sandor Life Sciences Private Limited . 56,385,767
Sandor Animal Biogenics Private Limited - (434,852)
Sandor Stones Private Limired o 3,618
Sandor Nephro Services Privare Limired ' 6,466,039
ARM Infosoft Private Limited ' 6,855,460
Sun Archean Abrasives T 161,100
Harmonica Healthcare : : 142,276,055

* Excluding share application money
Refer note 5(b) for guarzntess provided by related parties

Gratuity

The Company has a funded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed service of five years or
more is entitled for gratuity on departure, at 15 days last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The following
table summarises details of expense and amount recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Consolidated Statement of profit and loss

31 Maxch 2017
Current service cost S 1,036,570
Interest cost on benefit obligation : 216,600
Expected return on plan assets o (22,231)
Net actuarial loss recognized during the year 1,711,349
Total included in employee benefit cxpcnse.‘. o 2,942,288

‘Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets

31 Maxch 2017

Present value of defined benefit obligation 4t the end of the year 5,503,952
Fair value of assets at the end of the year o (1,270,288}
Net liability recognised in the consolidated balapge sheet 4,233,664
Changes in ptesent value of defined obligations
' 31 Masch 2017

Opening present value of defined obligations 2,850,000
Interest cost . 216,600
Current service cost - 1,036,570
Benefit paid S (348,143)
Actuzanal loss on obligations - 1,748,925
Closing present value of defined obligadons 5,503,952
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Changes in fair value of plan assets

31 March 2017
Opening fair value of plan assets 302,458
Expected return on plan assets 22,231
Employer's contrbutions 1,256,166
Benefits paid (348,143)
Actuarial gain 37,576
Closing fair value of plan asserts 1,270,288
Fair value of plan assets 31 Macch 2017
Opeaning fzir value of plan assets 302,458
Actual return on plan assets 59,807
Employer's conttibutions 1,256,166
Benefits paid (348,143)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1,270,288

(b) The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the gratuity obligadon for the Holding Company's
plans are shown below:

31 March 2017
Discount rate 7.00%
Salary escalation rate 3.00%
Attrition rate 3.00%
Expected future service 25.22 years

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuztion, take account of inflation, seniority, promotions
and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market. The Company evaluates these
assumptions annually based on its long term plans of growth and industry standards.

26 Earnings per equity share ('EPES')

(a) Computation of profit for the year

31 March 2017 .
Profit for the year 61,749,217
Add/(less): Dilutive impact on earnings -
Profit attributable to equity sharcholders for compuratoen of basic and
dilutive EPES 61,749,217

{b) Number of equity shares

31 March 2017
Weighted average number of shares considered for computation of basic 1,633,606
EPES
Add: Dilutive impact on account of CCPS 559,742
Weighted average number of shares considered for computation of
diluted EPES 2,193,348

\Ww
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27 Unhedged foreign curmrency exposure
31 March 2017

Trade payables 121,201,529

28 The Group’s significant leasing arrangements are i respect of cancellable operating leases for premises. Rental expense
under thosc leases 15 $11,043,761.

29 Contingent liabilities and commitments

S 31 March 2017
(a) During the year the Holding Company has received an income X demand 31,108,266
for the year 2013-14 arising on account of adjustments made towards
certain expenses. The Management is contesting the aforesad demand and
based on its assessment believes that the matter will be decided in favour of
the Holding Company
{(b) Furare commitments for investments e 76,151,330

30 Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)

During the year, the Holding Company had transactions in specified bank notes and other denominaton notes.
Transactions during the pedod from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 as are given below:

~Particulars s SBNs* Other Toral
denomination
notes
Closing cash in hand as on 8 Novernber 2016 * - 32,600,000 24,995 32,624,995
{+) Permitred receipts - 6,169,604 6,169,604
{-) Permitted payments - - -
(-) Amount deposited i1 banks ) : 32,600,000 2252398 34,852,398
Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016 - 3,942,201 3,942,201

¥For the purposes of this clause, the term ‘Specified Bank Notes’ shall have the same meaning provided in the notification
of the Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number 8.0, 3307(E), dated the
8 November 2016.

31 Segment reporting
Based on the Group’s business model and considering the internal financial reporting to the management, the management
has identified ‘Health care products and services’ as the only reportable segment. Hence, no separate financial disclosures
have been provided for segment reporting,

32 Exceponal item includes an amount of £105,645,100, being gain on sale of investment in Sandor Nephro Services Private
Limited to Sandor Life Sciences Private Limited.

AR
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Medicaids Pvi. Ltd.
CIN Mo USTIDITGI995PTEN? 1906

ATTENDANCE SLIP FOR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(To be surrendered at the venue of the meeting)

[ certify that | am a registered shareholder/proxy/representative for the registered
shareholder(s) of M/s. Sandor Medicaids Private Limited.

[ hereby record my presence at the 22nd Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of M/s.
Sandor Medicaids Private Limited on Monday the 18t Day of September, 2017 at 09.30 AM at its
registered office situated at # 8-2-326/5, 4t Floor, Road No. 3, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad
500034.

DP ID* Reg. folio no.

Client ID* No of shares

*Applicable if shares are held in electronic form

Name and Address of Member:

Signature of Shareholder/ Proxy/
Representative (Please Specify)
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Medicaids Pvi. Ltd.
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN U51101TG1995PTC021906

Name of the Company SANDOR MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered Office # 8-2-326/5, 4th Floor, Plot No. 1 Road No.3, Banjara Hills
Hyderabad Hyderabad TG 500034 IN

Name of the Member

Registered Address

Email ID

Folio No/ Client ID DPID.:

[/We, being the member(s) of shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

1 Name:

Address

Email ID Signature
Or failing him

2 Name:

Address

Email ID Signature
Or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 22nd
Annual general meeting of the company, to be held on the Monday the 18t Day of September,
2017 at 09.30 AM at its registered office situated at # 8-2-326/5, 4t Floor, Road No. 3, Banjara
Hills, Hyderabad 500034 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are
indicated below:

Sl. No Resolutions For Against

1 Consider and adopt the Standalone Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March
31, 2017 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the
Auditors thereon;

2 Consider and adopt the Consolidated audited financial
statements of the Company for the financial year ended March
31,2017 and the Report of the Auditors thereon;

3 Appointment of statutory auditor and fix their remuneration
for the financial year 2016 - 2017

4 Appointment of M/s K. N. Murthy & Co. (FRN: 006823S),
Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad as the joint statutory
auditor:

5 Approval for Material Related Party Transactions

Affix
Signed this ............. (s ENAe) T 2017. Revenue

Stamp
Signature of shareholder: Signature of Proxy holder(s):

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.
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Address:
SANDOR MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED
# 8-2-326/5, 4th Floor, Plot No. 1 Road No.3, Banjara Hills
Hyderabad Hyderabad Telangana, India 500034

Source: Google Map



If Undelivered Please return to:

SANDOR MEDICAIDS PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: # 8-2-326/5, 4th Floor, Plot No. 1,
Road No.3, Banjara Hills,Hyderabad,
Telangana, India - 500034



